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Commissioner

Kstjn S. Fox
Director

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION FOR BEHA VIORAL HEALTH

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301
603-271-9544 1-800-852-3345 Ext. 9544

Fax: 603-271-4332 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dlihs.nh.sov

March 15, 2024

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division for Behavioral Health,
to enter into a Sole Source amendment to an existing contract with Headrest (VC# 175226-
ROOi), Lebanon, NH for the expansion, improvement and ongoing implementation of the 988
Suicide and Crisis Lifeline services, by increasing the price limitation by $977,839 from
$1,678,763 to $2,656,602 with no change to the contract completion date of June 30, 2025,
effective upon Governor and Council approval. 100% Federal Funds.

The original contract was approved by Governor and Council on January 22, 2020, item
#14, as amended on May 19, 2021, item #20, amended on June 29, 2022, item #30, and most
recently amended on June 14, 2023, item #40.

Funds are available in the following accounts for State Fiscal Years 2024 and 2025, with
the authority to adjust budget line Items within the price limitation and encumbrances between
state fiscal years through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

05-95-92-922010-41170000 Health & Social Services, Department of Health & Human
Services, HHS: Behavioral Health, Div of. Bureau of Mental Health Services, CMH Program
Support

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2020 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
92204117 $200,000 $0 $200,000

2021 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
92204117 $200,000 $0 $200,000

2022 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
92204117 $230,000 $0 $230,000

2023 102-600731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
92204117 $200,000 $0 $200,000

2024 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
92204117 $250,000 $0 $250,000

2025 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
92204117 $250,000 $0 $250,000

Subtotal $1,330,000 $0 $1,330,000
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05-95-92-920010-25940000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS
DEPT. HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV, DIV BEHAVIORAL HEALTH OPERATIONS, 988
GRANT

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

Job

Numt>er

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2023 074-500585

Grants For

Pub Asst
And Rel

92012594 $171,781 $0 $171,781

2024 . 074-500585

Grants For

Pub Asst

And Rel

92012594 $164,982 $0 $164,982

2024 074-500685

Grants For

Pub Asst

And Rel

92032594 $0 $507,664 $507,664

2025 074-500585

Grants For

Pub Asst

And Rel

92032594 $0 $470,175 $470,175

Subtotal $336,763 $977,839 $1,314,602

05-95-92-922010-41200000 Health & Social Services, Department of Health & Human
Services, HHS: Behavioral Health, DIv of, Bureau of Mental Health Services, Mental Health
Block Grant

State

Fiscal

Year

Class/

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased.

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2023 074-500585

Grants For

Pub Asst

And Rel

92254120 $12,000 $0 $12,000;

Subtotal $12,000 $0 $12,000

Total $1,678,763 $977,839 $2,656,602

EXPLANATION

This request is Sole Source because MOP 150 requires all amendments to agreements
previously approved as sole source to be Identified as sole source. The Substance Abuse Mental
Health Administration approved a federal award to the Department on September 27,2023, which
Identifted the Contractor, the primary Lifeline Center accepting 988 suicide and crisis lifeline calls,
texts and chats from the national lifeline network, to expand, improve and continue the
implementation of the 988 Suicide and Crisis Lifeline services.

The purpose of this request is for targeted capacity building, enhanced and improved
services and ongoing Implementation of the 988 Suicide and Crisis Lifeline services. The
Contractor v^ll hire additional staff to respond to the increased volume by making more chat and
text hours available, and to ensure better continuity of care during the provision of follow-up
services for acute calls. In addition, the Contractorwill develop a data collection protocol to identity
high-risk populations, protocols to identify and review critical incidents, and quality assurance
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plans. Lastly, the Contractor will focus on improyed services to marginalized populations by
providing targeted training designed to increase knowledge, skills, and cultural effectiveness.

Approximately 14,000 call. text, and chat contacts per year will be primarily managed by
the Contractor during State Fiscal Years 2024 and 2025.

The Contractor will continue to provide call. text, and chat functions for 988 Suicide and
Crisis Lifeline twenty-four (24) hours per day, seven (7) days per week, 365 days per year. The
Suicide and Crisis Lifeline offers free and confidential emotional support to people in a suicidal
crisis or emotional distress. The Contractor's trained staff.will continue to provide individuals with
information and referral services, personal support, crisis inten/ention, suicide intervention, and
referrals for immediate and follow-up services by continuing to collaborate with the Department's
behavioral health Rapid Response Access Point Contractor, when necessary, to dispatch Rapid
Response (mobile crisis) Teams.

The Department will continue to monitor services by reviewing the monthly reports
submitted by the Contractor.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request, the ability of the Contractor
to expand, improve and continue implementation of the 988 Suicide and Crisis Lifeline services
will be impeded. The Contractor will not have the ability to respond to increased contact volume,
ensure Ijetter continuity of care during the provision of follow-up services for acute calls, or
improve services to marginalized populations. In addition, the Contractor's ability to develop
protocols related to critical incidents and quality services will be limited.

Area served: Statewide.

Source of Federal Funds: Assistance Listing Number 93.243. FAIN #H79FG001183.

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available. General Funds will not
be requested to support this program.

Re^ctfuIIy submitted.

Lori A. Weaver

Commissioner

The Deparlmenl of Health and Human Services'Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citisens to achieve health and independence.
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #4

This Amendment to the Suicide Hotline Services contract is by and between the State of New Hampshire,
Department of Health and Human Services {"State" or "Department") and Headrest ("the Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on January 22. 2020 (Item #14), as amended on May 19. 2021 (Item #20), and amended on June 29, 2022
(Item #30). and most recently amended on June 14, 2023 (Item# 40)rthe Contractor agreed to perform
certain services based upon the terms and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and in
consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, the Contract may be amended upon written
agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.6, Account Number, to read:

05-95-92-922010-41170000

05-92-92-920010-25940000

05-95-92-922010-41200000

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$2,656,602

3. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.9, Contracting Officer for State Agency, to read:

Robert W. Moore, Director

4. Modify Exhibit A, Amendrhent #2, Scope of Services, by adding Section 2.19 through Section 2.20,
to read:

2.19. Caoacitv Building

2.19.1. The Contractor shall increase its capacity to respond to people experiencing a
behavioral health crisis by ensuring the personnel provided includes:

2.19.1.1. A Project Manager to:

2.19.1.1.1. Oversee operations;

2.19.1.1.2. Coordinate partnerships; and

2.19.1.1.3. Liaise with the Department, the Department's designated NH
Rapid Response Access Point provider, and the technical
assistance staff from the University of New Hampshire
Institute for Health Policy and Practice;

2.19.1.2. Additional Lifeline Center staff to adequately:

2.19.1.2.1. Increase available chat and text hours; and

2.19.1.2.2. Respond to ongoing increases in contact volume;

2.19.1.3. Peer Specialists to adequately reflect the need of communities served to
ensure better continuity of care when providing follow-up sen/ices for
acute calls; and

2.19.1.4. A Data Analyst to develop a data collection protocol to identify high-risk

Headrest A-S-1.3

-OS

X

SS-2020-DBH-05-SUICI-01-A04 Page 1 of 5 3/15/2024
V. 7.12.23
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populations.

2.19.2. The Contractor shall collaborate with Department key personnel, including the Project
Director, the Department's designated NH Rapid Response Access Point provider,
and the technical assistance staff from the University of New Hampshire Institute for
Health Policy and Practice to:

2.19.2.1. Develop protocols to identify and review critical incidents including, but not
limited to, death by suicide when the incident occurs within seven (7) days
of contact with the State's 988 Lifeline center;

2.19.2.2. Adjust the Contractor's reporting processes to capture demographic data
on each contact, including, but not limited to:

2.19.2.2.1. Suicide attempts.

2.19.2.2.2. Outcomes related to emergency response with and without law
enforcement.

2.19.2.2.3. Mobile crisis outreach referrals.

2.19.2.2.4. Referrals to local community providers;

2.19.2.3. Develop quality assurance plans, by a deadline mutually agreed upon by
the Contractor and the Department, that include the utilization of
technology to capture the identification and review of critical incidents;

2.19.2.4. Develop a sustainability plan, by a deadline mutually agreed upon by the
Contractor and the Department, detailing how the Contractor will sustain its
workforce capacity and its performance indicators; and

2.19.2.5. Explore the feasibility of directly dispatching mobile crisis teams including,
but not limited to, creating a detailed plan based on self-study that includes
identified needs and technology infrastructure to implement dispatch
capabilities as a Lifeline Center.

2.20. Enhanced Staffing Capabilities

2.20.1. The Contractor shall improve services and outreach to marginalized populations by
providing targeted training to Lifeline Center staff designed to:

2.20.1.1. Increase knowledge and skills related to specialty populations, including,
but not limited to:

2.20.1.1.1. LGBTQAI+populations.

2.20.1.1.2. Individuals experiencing co-occurring disorders.

2.20.1.1.3. Individuals experiencing use with alcohol and other drugs.

2.20.1.2. Improve cultural effectiveness and response when working with
marginalized populations.

2.20.2. The Contractor shall support the well-being of Lifeline Center staff by, including, but
not limited to:

2.20.2.1. Providing training on secondary and/or vicarious trauma.

2.20.2.2. Debriefing after critical incidents.

5. Modify Exhibit A, Amendment #2. Scope of Services, by adding Section 3.4, to read:

3.4. The Contractor may be required to provide other key data and metrics to the Department in a
— OS

J6
Headrest A-S-1.3
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format specified by the Department.

6. Modify Exhibit B, Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 2, to read:

2. This Agreement is funded by:

2.1. .50% Federal funds, Block GrantsJor Community Mental Health Services, as awarded
on 5/17/21, by the Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration, Center
for Mental Health Services, ALN 93.958, FAIN B09SM085371.

2.2. 49.5% Federal funds, NH's strategy to address overall capacity, consistency, and quality
of 988 services, as awarded on 4/15/22, by the Substance Abuse and Mental Health
Services Administration, Center for Mental Health Services, ALN 93.243, FAIN
H79SM086074; and as awarded on 9/27/23, by the Substance Abuse and Mental Health
Services Administration, Center for Mental Health Services, ALN 93.243, FAIN
H79FG001183.

2.3. 50% General funds.

2.4. The Contractor shall use the funding in accordance with Exhibit A, Amendment #2, Scope
of Services, Section 2.2.

7. Modify Exhibit B, Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 5, Subsection 5.1. to
read:

5.1. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred in the
fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with the approved line items as specified
in Exhibit B-1, Budget through Exhibit B-9, Amendment #4, Budget.

8. Add Exhibit B-8, Amendment #4, Budget, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference
herein.

9. Add Exhibit B-9, Amendment #4, Budget, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference
herein.

Headrest A-S-1.3
£

SS-2020-DBH-05-SUICI-01-A04 Page 3 of 5 3/15/2024
V. 7.12.23
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All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not modified by this Amendment remain
in full force and effect. This Amendment shall be effective upon Governor and Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Sen/ices

3/20/2024

Date

^DoeuSign«d by;

"CDOPOCOIHCKjWe!!.-- ■ ■■ - ■■

Name: Katja s. Fox

Director

Headrest

3/15/2024

Date

DMuStgntd by:

'1. UrjTMAICWBMpe... ■
^ame:Judith Caprio
Title:

Executive Director

Headrest

SS-2020.DBH-05-SUICI-01-A04

V. 7.12.23

A-S-1.3

Page 4 of 5
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

-Do^SigntdbY:

3/26/2024

^••^DocuSigntd by;

Date Name: Robyn Guarino
Title. Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

Headrest A-S-1.3

SS-2020-DBH-05-SUICI>01 -A04 Page 5 of 5
V. 7.12.23
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Exhibit B-9. Amendment #4, Budget

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

COMPLETE ONE BUDGET FORM FOR EACH BUDGET PERIOD

Contncior Nami; Headrest

Preset TWt: SU

Budget Parted: SFY 2024

Total Preflfam Cost Coritrectof Share / Match Funded by DHHS contract stu~
Line Rem tndlreci tndlrect

1. Total SatacyiWaees 287.560.00

2. Employee Banefts

3. ConsuRanti

4. EqutprTvem;

Rental

Repair and Malntenanee

Purtatate/Oepreciation

5. Suppttes:

Educationsl

Lab

Pharmacy

6. Travel

7. Occupancy

8. Current Expenses

Telephotte

Postage

Subscriptions

Audi artd Legal

Insurance

Board Expenses

to. MarltetlrWCommurecatlotts

It. SiaftEducation and Training

12. Subcontracts/Aqreemefcs

13. Other (specific Oetads mandatoiv):

•Tiurm463,217.00 r.664.00 I
Indirect As A Percent of Direct

Headrest

SS-2020OBH-0S-SUICM)1-A04

Etddbit B^. Atnendment *4. Budget
Page i e( t

JC
ConUactot tiUsIs

"3715/2024
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Exhibit B-9, Amendmtnt #4, Budget

New Hampehire Department of Heatth and Human Services

COMPLETH ONE BUDGET FORM FOR EACH BUDGET PERIOD

CoRtrecter Name; Hvadiesi

Prejtet Tttla: MS

Budeai Parted: SPY 202$

ToMi Program Caal' ^3fl5c5S^K!r^n3!tc5r FuiMtad by DHH5 eerrtract fttaTT
Una Ram IndRact

1. Tom Saiaryrwaoea

2. Emotevaa BanaWa

3. ConsaMsflia

«■ Equtemam:

Rapalr and Maimenanea
PureHaaa/Oaeraciatlen

5. SupoBat:

Phafmaey

7. Occuoancv
8. Currani Expanaaa

Talaphana
Powaoa
Subacrteitont
Auda and Legal »,200,00
Inturanca 8,000.00
Board Enpanaaa

Software
to. MarRettea/Communicatlem
11. Staff Edueatton ir»e Trairdnq
12. SuOcontnen/Aaraemenlt
13. Otnar (ipadftc Oetada mandatoryt:

Indirael Coil

42$.72a.0<^ 470.178.00 I
Indirect Ai A Parcatft of Diraci

Haadraxt
SS-2020-OeH4S-SUICM}1-A04
Emibtt B-O, Amandmant *4. Budget
Page 1 o( 1

J6
Comraetet muals

3/15/2024
Dale
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

1, David M. Scanlan, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that HEADREST is a New

Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on April 27, 1972. 1 further certify' that all

fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's office have been received and is in good standing as far as this office is

concerned.

Business ID: 61466

Certificate Number: 0005770571

iSf.

O

5^

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be afilxed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 3rd day of May A.D. 2022.

David M. Scanlan

Secretary' of State
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CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

I, Kathie J. Nolet hereby certify that:
(Name of the elected Officer of the Corporation/LLC; cannot be contract signatory)

1. 1 am a duly elected Clerk/Secretary/Officer of HEADREST
(Corporation/LLC Name)

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and
held on Mav 31 , 20 23 . at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and voting.

(Date)

VOTED: That Judith CaPfio. Executive Director (may list more than one person)
(Name and Title of Contract Signatory)

is duly authorized on behalf of HEADREST to enter into contracts or agreements with the State
(Name of Corporation/ LLC)

of New Hampshire and any of Its agencies or departments and further is authorized to execute any and all
documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which
may in his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. I hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This authority was valid thirty (30)
days prior to and remains valid for thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further certify
that it is understood that the State of New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s)
listed above currently occupy the position(s) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To
the extent that there are any limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation in contracts with
the State of New Hampshire, all such limitations are expressly stated herein. r

Dated: 3/20/24

Title; Board Secretary

Rev. 03/24/20
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ACORtf
DATE (UMnXVYYYY)

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A IdATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the pollcy(les) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to
the terms and conditions of the policy, certain poileles may require an endorsement A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the

PeOOUCER

THE ROWLEY AGENCY LLC

45 Conatitut:ion Avonue

P.O. Box 511

Concord NH 03302—0511

Rachel Ciunta

(603)224-2562 moI:

rgiuntafl rowleyagency. com

MSURERISI AFFOROIKO COVERAOE NAIC *

NSURERA:Philadelohia Insurance Cocmanv

IMSUREO

Headrest

14 Church Street

Lebanon NH 03766

MSURERB:Eastern Alliance Insurance Co. 10724

MSURERC:

MSURER 0:

MSURER E:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE USTEO BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED NOTWrTHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WfTH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

"ifSir
TYPE OF NSlWAMCe

rrgjaniriy
l POUCY NUMBER

POLICY EPF
muiDotrrm

POUCY EXP
tMMrtlONYYYl

uuirs

JJB. i'M'li.Vi'l

COMMERCIAL OENERAL UABIUTY

H OCCURClAMS-MAOE

GEKL AOGR£Q*TE LIWIT APPUE3 PER

□ 5^- Btoc-
Llab

POUCY

OTHER

PaFK297>tl»

lUtfo D«t«:7/lS/lC

7/15/20J3 7/19/2024

EACH OCCURRENCE
DAMASe TO RENTED
PREMISES {E« ocgjrrtnc*)

MED EXP (Any one pfion)

PERSONAL A AOV INJURY

GENERALAGGREGATE

PRODUCTS • COMP/OPAOG

PtrOoe/An-CWm* M*0*

1,000,000

100,000

5,000

1,000,000

3,000,000

3,000,000

91M/03N

AUTOMOBILE UABItrTY
COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
(Ea >eda4nn

1,000,000

ANY AUTO

ALL OWNED
AUTOS

HIRED AUTOS

BOOILY INJURY (Pw pcnon] '

SCHEDULED
AUTOS
NON-OWNED
AUTOS

PHnU581145 7/1S/2023 7/15/2024 BODILY INJURY (Ptr pcddwit)
PROPERTY DAMAGE j
(Pf accHNnll

mnd^oiwitd

UHBRELLAUAB

EXCESS UAB

OCCUR

CLAIMSA(M)E

EACH OCCURRENCE 3.000.000

DEO RETENTION > 10,000 PBUBt24443 7/15/2023 7/15/2024

AGGREGATE
Mo t PraiMsanai SuOUMCA^

3.000.000

3,000,000

WORKERS COMPENaATIDN
AND EMPLOYERS- UABIUTY

ANY PROPWETOR/WRTNEREXECUnvE
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?
(Mandat^ In NH)
B vM. Oeacfba undar
DESCRIPTION OP OPERATIONS below

Y/N

H N/A

3A SUtaa: KB 4 OX

01-0000121044-04

TER
STATUTE

rSTHT
ISB

ex. EACH ACCIDENT 500.000

7/15/2023 7/15/2024 EX. DISEASE • EA EMPLOYEE SOO.OOO

EX.DISEASE-POLICYUMIT ■ 500.000

Abusa

Profasaional Liability

PBPX2S73889

PBnU57988»

7/15/2023

7/15/2023

7/15/2024

7/15/2024

Par Oeturreneeywoate LInM

Each Ineldani/Aogragala UmR

$1M/$1M

51M/$3M

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS I LOCATIONS ^ VEHICLES (ACORD181. Additional Ramailta Schadula, may ba attachad If mora apaca la taqidrad)
Covering operations usual to Insured through out the policy tern.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

Department of Health & Human Sorvicea
129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301-3857

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF. NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WfTH THE POUCY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTAnVE

Rachel Giunta/RG

ACORD 25 (2014/01)
INS025 (201401)

01988-2014 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
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Mission Statement

Headrest supports individuals and their families, friends and neighbors affected by substance

use, navigating recovery, or in crisis, by providing effective programs and treatment options

that support prevention and long-term recovery. Headrest will never turn anyone away.
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HEADREST, INC.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2022 and 2021

DRAFT
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

To the Board of Directors

Headrest, Inc.
Lebanon, New Hampshire

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying fmancial statements of Headrest, Inc. (a New Hampshire nonprofit
corporation), which comprise the statements of financial position as of June 30, 2022 and the related
statements of activities and changes in net assets, functional expenses and cash flows for the year then ended,
and the related notes to the fmancial statements.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the fmancial
position of Headrest, Inc. as of June 30, 2022 and the statements of activities and changes in its net assets,
functional expenses and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors' Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of
Headrest, Inc. and to meet our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the relevant ethical
requirerrients relating to our audit. We believe-that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these fmancial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of fmancial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

1-
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Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors' report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore, is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud^may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements, including
omissions, are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in aggregate, they
would influence the judgement made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, we:

Exercise professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the fmancial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the fmancial statements.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of Headrest, Inc.'s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

Conclude whether, in our judgement, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that
raise substantial doubt about Headrest, Inc.'s ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable
period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control related
matters that we identified during the audit.

Report on Summarized Comparative Information

We have previously audited Headrest, Inc.'s 2021 fmancial statements, and we expressed an unmodified
audit opinion on those audited fmancial statements in our report dated February 11, 2022. In our opinion,
the summarized comparative information presented herein as of and for the year ended June 30, 2021, is
consistent, in all material respects, with the audited financial statements from which it has been derived.

DRAFT

Rowley & Associates, P.C.
Concord, New Hampshire
January 27, 2023
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HEADREST, INC

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

June 30, 2022, With Comparative Totals for June 30, 2021

See Independent Auditors' Report

Net Assets

Without Donor

Restrictions

Net Assets

With Donor

Restrictions

2022

Total 2021

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents

Accounts receivable

$  559,415

105,162

$  25,798 $  585,213 $

105,162

750,987

111,860

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 664,577 25,798 690,375 862,847

FIXED ASSETS

Land

Building and improvements

Furnishings and equipment

19,010

522,558

300,297

19,010

522,558

300,297

19,010

241,037

252,845

Total Fixed Assets

Less accumulated depreciation

841,865

(398,675)

841,865

(398,675)

512,892

(367,002)

443,190 443,190 145,890

OTHER ASSETS

Loan origination fee, net of amortization 121 121 248

TOTAL ASSETS $  1,107,888 $  25,798 S  1,133,686 $ 1,008,985

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

'

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accounts payable

Accrued expenses

Current portion of long term debt

$  16,313

82,628

21,492

S $  16,313 $

82,628

21,492

3,285

52,922

11,117

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 120,433 - 120,433 67.324

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

Long term debt 263,874 263,874 12,622

TOTAL LIABILITIES 384,307 384,307 79,946

NET ASSETS

Without donor restrictions

Undesignated

Board designated

593,129

130,452

. 593,129

130,452

797,828

Total without donor restrictions

With donor restrictions

723,581

25,798

723,581

25,798

797,828

131,211

TOTAL NET ASSETS 723,581 25,798 749,379 929,039

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS $  1,107,888 $  25,798 E  1,133,686 $ 1,008,985

Notes to Financial Statements
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HEADREST, INC

STATEMENT OF ACTIVmES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

For The Year Ended June 30, 2022

With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended June 30,2021
See Independent Auditors' Report

Net Assets

Without Donor

Restrictions

Net Assets

With Donor

Restrictions

2022

Total 2021

SUPPORT AND REVENUE

State contracts

Local government grants

Contributions

Service fees

Other grants

SBA Paycheck Protection Program loan forgiveness

Interest

$  594,603

98,960

127,949

976,632

335,359

197

$  - $

1,050

37,500

594,603 3

98,960

128,999

976,632

372,859

197

:  658,746

101,460

196,667

755,104

329,412

182,300

645

TOTAL SUPPORT AND REVENUE 2,133,700 38,550 2,172,250 2,224,334

Net assets released from donor

imposed restrictions 143,963 (143,963)

EXPENSES

Program services

Management and general

Fundraising

2,049,384

322.169

53,682

-
2,049,384

322,169

53,682

1,420,020

240,897

37,897

2,425,235 - 2,425,235 1,698,814

Operating (decrease) increase in net assets (147,572) (105,413) (252,985) 525,520

Assets acquired from CAIP merger (Note. 10)

Cash 73,325 73,325

73,325 - 73,325 -

Total (decrease) increase in net assets (74,247) (105,413) (179,660) 525,520

Net Assets, Beginning of year 797,828 131,211 929,039 403,519

Net assets, End of year $  723,581 $  25,798 $ 749,379 3;  929,039

Notes to Financial Statements
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HEADREST, INC

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

For The Year Ended June 30, 2022

With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended June 30, 2021
See Independent Auditors' Report

Program Services Managerhent 2022 2021

Outpatient CMRD Total & General Fundraising Total Total

Payroll $ 942,261 $ 314,087 $ 1,256,348 $  109,248 $  35,015 $ 1,400.611 $1,065,332

Payroll taxes 79.592 26,530 106,122 9,228 2,958 118,308 90,107

Fringe benefits 119,783 39,927 159,710 13,888 4,451 178,049 132,282

Professional fees - - - 47,515 - 47,515 33,836

Telephone and internet 7,588 3,100 10,688 7,155 -
17,843 5,567

Printing • - - 7,917 4,751 12,668 1,621

Depreciation 18,740 7,654 26,394 5,406 -
31,800 21,655

Rent 49,505 20,221 69,726 14,281 - 84,007 47,232

Utilities 33,783 13,798 47,581 9,745 - 57,326 27,637

Billing Services 52,136 • 52,136 • - 52,136 45,347

Repairs and maintenance 133,528 54,539 188,067 38,520 -
226,587 72,817

Supplies 17,715 7,236 24,951 17,483 - 42,434 21,948

Vehicle expense 6,953 2,840 9,793 6,288 - 16,081 12,193

Interest 5,758 2,352 8,110 1,649 - 9,759 1,331

Insurance 38,598 15,766 54,364 4,727 1,515 60,606 34,811

Food . 24,506 24,506 . • 24,506 18,510

Professional development 3,315 1,354 4,669 8,229 - 12,898 3,529

Membership dues and fees • - - 11,213 -
11,213 13,268

Laundry - 2,634 2,634 - -
2,634 2,319

Miscellaneous - 3,585 3,585 - 4,992 8,577 5,155

Website & Marketing - . - 9.677 - 9,677 42,317

TOTAL EXPENSES $1,509,255 $ 540,129 $ 2,049,384 $  322,169 $  53.682 $ 2,425,235 $1,698,814

Notes to Financial Statements
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HEADREST, INC

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For The Years Ended June 30, 2022 and 2021

See Independent Auditors' Report

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Change in Net Assets

Adjustments to reconcile increase (decrease) in net assets
to net cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation

Forgiveness of SBA Paycheck Protection Program loan
(Increase) in Operating Assets

Accounts receivable

Prepaid expenses

(Decrease) increase In Operating Liabilities

Accounts payable

Accrued expenses

NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTrVITIES

Purchase of building and improvements

Purchase of vehicle and equipment

NET CASH USED BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Repayments of long term notes payable

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE OF CASH FLOW

Cash paid for interest

SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION ON NON-CASH ACTIVITES

Purchase of building and improvements

Mortgage financing of purchase
Cash paid for purchase

$  281,521

(280,000)

2022 2021

$  (179,660) $  525,520

31,800 21,655

- (182,300)

6,698 (1,360)

- 4,800

13,028 (18,481)
29,706 (4,983)

(98,428) 344,851

(1,521)

(47,452) (51,722)

(48,973) (51,722)

(18,373) (10,627)

(165,774) 282,502

750,987 468,485

$  585.213 $  750,987

$  9,759 $  1,331

1,521

Notes to Financial Statements
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HEADREST, INC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Jane 30, 2022 and 2021

NOTE 1. NATURE OF ACTIVITIES AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature of Activities

Headrest, Inc. ("Headrest") is a New Hampshire nonprofit corporation that provides
information and referral, crisis intervention and other related services through the uses of a
telephone hotline and office visitations. Headrest also provides outpatient counseling,
residential treatment, and information to the community relating to drugs and alcohol. The
organization's primary source of income is from state contracts, service fees, grants, and
donations.

Significant Accounting Policies

The summary of significant accounting policies of the Organization is presented to assist in
understanding the Organization's fmancial statements. The fmancial statements and notes are
representations of the Organization's management who is responsible for their integrity and
objectivity. These accounting policies conform to U.S. generally accepted accounting principles
and have been consistently applied in the preparation of the fmancial statements.

Basis of Presentation

The Organization maintains its accounting records on the accrual basis of accounting whereby
revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when the obligation is incurred.
The Organization reports information regarding its fmancial position and activities according to
two classes of net assets: net assets without donor restrictions and net assets with donor
restrictions.

Net Assets without Donor Restrictions - These net assets generally result from revenues
generated by receiving contributions that have no donor restrictions, providing services, and
receiving interest from operating investments, less expenses incurred in providing program-
related services, raising contributions, and performing administrative functions.

Net Assets with Donor Restrictions - These net assets result from gifts of cash and other
assets that are received with donor stipulations that limit the use of the donated assets, either
temporarily or permanently, until the donor restriction expires, that is until the stipulated
time restriction ends or the purpose of the restriction is accomplished, the net assets are
restricted.

Comparative Financial Information

The financial statements include certain prior-year summarized comparative information in
total but not by net asset class. Such information does not include sufficient detail to constitute
a presentation in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. Accordingly, such
information should be read in conjunction with the Organization's financial statements for the
year ended June 30, 2021, from which the summarized information was derived.

-7-
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HEADREST, INC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Jane 30,2022 and 2021

NOTE 1. NATURE OF ACTIVITIES AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property and Equipment

All acquisitions of property and equipment in excess of $1,000 and all expenditures for repairs,
maintenance, renewals, and betterments that materially prolong the usefiil lives of assets are
capitalized. Property and equipment are carried at cost or, if donated, at the approximate fair
value at the date of donation. Depreciation is computed using primarily the straight-line
method. Depreciation expense was $31,800 and $21,655 for the years ended June 30, 2022 and
2021, respectively.

Income taxes

The Organization has been notified by the Internal Revenue Service that it is exempt from
federal income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. The Organization
is further classified as an organization that is not a private foundation under Section 509(a)(3)
of the Code. The most significant tax positions of the Organization are its assertion that it is
exempt fi"om income taxes and its determination of whether any amounts are subject to
unrelated business tax (UBIT). The Organization follows the guidance of Accounting
Standards Codification (ASC) 740, Accounting for Income Taxes, related to uncertain income
taxes, which prescribes a threshold of more likely than not for recognition and recognition of
tax positions taken or expected to be taken in a tax return. All significant tax positions have
been considered by management. It has been determined that it is more likely than not that all
tax positions would be sustained upon examination by taxing authorities. Accordingly, no
provision for income taxes has been recorded.

Grants Receivable and Recognition of Donor Restricted Contributions

Contributions are recognized when the donor makes an unconditional promise to give to the
Organization. Contributions that are restricted by the donor are reported as increases in net
assets without donor restriction if the restrictions expire in the fiscal year in which the
contributions are recognized. All other donor-restricted contributions are reported as increases
in net assets with donor restriction. When a restriction expires, net assets with donor restriction
are reclassified to net assets without donor restriction. Contributions of long-lived assets are
considered without donor restriction unless the donor specifies a time-restriction.

The Organization provides for losses on grants and accounts receivable using the afiowance
method. The allowance is based on experience, third-party contracts, and other circumstances,
which may affect the ability of donors to meet their obligations. Receivables are considered
impaired if full principal payments are not received in accordance with the contractual terms. It
is the Organization's policy to charge off uncollectible grants and accounts receivable when
management determines the receivable will not be collected. There were no balances in the
allowance account related to accounts receivable as of June 30, 2022 and 2021 because all
amounts were deemed collectable.

-8-
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HEADREST, INC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2022 and 2021

NOTE 1. NATURE OF BUSINESS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the Organization considers all highly liquid
investments with an initial maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents. For the
years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021 the Organization had no cash equivalents.*

Public Support and Revenue

All contributions are considered to be without donor restriction use unless specifically restricted
by the donor.

Functional Expenses

Functional and administrative expenses have been allocated among program services based on
an analysis of personnel time and space utilized for the related activities.

Cost Allocation

Certain categories of expenses are attributable to more than one program or supporting function
and are allocated on a reasonable basis that is consistently applied. The expenses that are
allocated are payroll, payroll taxes, and fringe benefits which are allocated on the basis of
estimates of time and effort; rent, depreciation, utilities, and maintenance and repairs which are
allocated on the basis of space utilized for the related activities.

Compensated Absences

Employees of Headrest are entitled to earned benefit time (EBT) depending on job
classification, length of service and other factors. The accrued expense for EBT for the fiscal
years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021 were $33,030 and $13,756 respectively.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

The contracts receivable allowance for doubtful accounts is based upon management's
assessment of the credit history with agencies, organizations and individuals having
outstanding balances and current relationships with them. There was no balance in the
allowance for doubtful accounts as of June 30, 2022 and 2021.

Estimates

The preparation of fmancial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles require management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported
amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

-9-
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HEADREST, INC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Jane 30, 2022 and 2021

NOTE 1. NATURE OF BUSINESS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Concentration of Risk

The Organization maintains cash balances in several accounts at local banks. These accounts
are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation up to $250,000. At various times
throughout the year, the Organization may have cash balances at the fmancial institution that
exceeds the insured amount. Management does not believe this concentration of cash results in
a high level of risk for the Organization. At June 30, 2022 and 2021, the Organization had
$335,197 and $500,971 in uninsured cash balances, respectively.

Financial Instruments

The carrying value of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, prepaid expenses,
accounts payable and accrued expenses are stated at carrying cost at June 30, 2022 and 2021,
which approximates fair value due to the relatively short maturity of these instruments.

Reclassifications

Certain fmancial statement and note information from the prior year fmancial statements has
been reclassified to conform with current year presentation format.

Subsequent Event

Management has evaluated subsequent events through January 27, 2023, the date on which the
fmancial statements were available to be issued to determine if any are of such significance to
require disclosure. It has been determined that no subsequent events matching this criterion
occurred during this period.

NOTE 2. ECONOMIC DEPENDENCY

A substantial portion of Headrest's revenue comes from the Department of Health and Human
Services of the State of New Hampshire. For the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021 revenue from
the contract was approximately 27% and 29%, respectively of total revenue.

NOTE 3. LINE OF CREDIT

The Organization has a $75,000 line of credit with a local bank through January, 2024,
collateralized by all assets, with interest at Wall Street Journal prime. Interest was 4.0% as of June
30, 2022. The outstanding balance was $0 and $0 as of June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

-10-
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HEADREST, INC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2022 and 2021

NOTE 4. NOTES PAYABLE AND LONG-TERM DEBT

Notes payable and long-term debt consisted of the following as of:

June June

2022 2021

Mortgage note payable with bank with interest at 4.5%
dated July 31, 2003 and due July 31, 2023 with monthly
installments of principal and interest of $996, secured by
all assets of the organization. $ 12,626 $ 23,739

Mortgage note payable with bank with interest at 3.75%
dated September 10, 2021 and due September 10, 2041
with monthly installments of principal and interest of
$1,660, secured by all assets of the organization.
Total Obligation

Less current maturities

Long term debt, less current maturity

285,366 23,739

21.492 11.117

$263,874 $12,622

Scheduled principal repayments on long term debt for the next four years and thereafter follows:

Year Ending
June 30

2023 $ 21,492
2024 11,240

2025 10,632

2026 11,038
2027 11,459
Thereafter 219.505

Total $285,366

NOTE 5. OPERATING LEASES

The Organization entered a five-year and three-month lease beginning February 2018 and expiring
April 2023 for office space. Rent expense related to this lease was $42,432 and $42,432 for the years
ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

The Organization entered several month-to-month leases for their Impaired Driver Care
Management Program. Rent expense related to this lease was $36,175 and $0 for the years ended
June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

-11-
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HEADREST, INC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2022 and 2021

NOTE 5. OPERATING LEASES (Continued)

The Organization entered a lease beginning January 2020 and expiring June 2020 with the right to
extend the lease a year at a time after the end date. Rent expense related to this lease was $5,400
and $4,800 for the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

Future minimum rent related to these leases as of June 30 is:

2023:

NOTE 6. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

In accordance with FASB ASC 820, Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures, the Organization is
required to disclose certain information about its fmancial assets and liabilities. Fair values of
assets measured on a recurring basis at June 30 were as follows:

Significant other
Observable Inputs

Fair Value (Level 2)

2022

Accounts receivable $ 105.162

2021

Accounts receivable

The fair market value of accounts receivable is estimated at the present value of expected
future cash flows.

NOTE 7. NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS

Net assets subject to expenditure for specific purpose as of June 30:

2022 2021

Business Contributions $ - $ 31,346
Byrne Foundation Grant - 75,000
Spring Appeal - 24,865
Wallerstein Foundation 25.798 :

Total Net Assets with Donor Restrictions £25.798 £ 131.211

NOTE 8. SBA PAYCHECK PROTECTION PROGRAM LOAN

On April 16, 2020 the Organization received approval of a loan from The U.S. Small Business
Administration as part of the Paycheck Protection Program in the amount of $182,300. On
December 3, 2020, the full amount of the loan was forgiven under the provisions of Section 1106 of
the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security Act (CARES Act) (P.L. 116-136).

-12-
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HEADRJEST, INC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Jane 30, 2022 and 2021

NOTE 9. LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

The Organization has a policy to structure its financial assets to be available as its general
expenditures, liabilities and other obligations come due. The Organization's primary sources of
support are contributions, state contracts and grants. Most of that support is held for the purpose of
supporting the Organization's budget. The Organization has the following financial assets that
could readily be made available within one year to fund expenses without limitations:

2022 2021

Cash and cash equivalents $ 585,213 $ 750,987
Accounts receivable 105.162 111.860

690,375 862,847
Less amounts required to be held for

donor restriction f37.5001 031.2111

$ 652.875

NOTE 10. COMMUNITY ALCOHOL INFORMATION PROGRAM MERGER

On August 13, 2021 the Organization acquired the assets of Community Alcohol Information
Program (a non-profit organization). Both Organizations assist those affected by substance use
disorder, experiencing a crisis or in need of support by providing effective programs and treatments.
Through their merger, the Organizations seek to further their common mission. As of June 30,
2022 the assets acquired are listed below and are included in the statement of activities and changes
in net assets.

Cash

Unrestricted $ 73.325

NOTE 11. RISKS AND UNCERTAINRIES: COVID-19

As a result ofthe spread of the Covid-19 coronavirus, economic uncertainties have arisen which may
negatively impact future financial performance. The potential impact of these uncertainties is
unknown and cannot be estimated at the present time.

-13-
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ALBERT CARBONNEAU

EXPERIENCE

FEBRUARY 2020 - PRESENT

HEADREST

HOTUNE MANAGER
PARTICiPATElN INTERVIEWING ANDHIRING APPROPRIATEHOTUNECOUNSEUDRS,TRAIN NEW

HOTUNE STAFF, PROVIDESTAFF EVALUATIONS, MANAGE SCHEDULE, REVIEWCALL LOGS AND
PROVIDEFEEDBACK, MANAGE ICARROLDATABASE, PROVIDE REPORTS AS NECESSARY,
FACIUTATEMONTHLYSTAFFMEETINGS, PARTICIPATEIN MANAGEMENTMEETINGS, PROVIDE
ON-CALLSUPPORT, WORK WITHIN ASSIGNED HOTLINEBUDGET,OUTREACHINTO THE HOTUNE

CATCHMENT AREA

JUNE2010-PRESENT

UPPER VALLEY HAVEN

SHELTER STAFF, SHELTER TEAM LEADER, PROGRAM ASSOCIATH/ RECOVERY
SUPPORT

Tasks Included working on meetlngshelterguest'sday today needs. Doln^hou^ laundry,
making meals when necessary. Keeping notes, enteringdata, sorting mall, providing
transportation when necessarV- Attending shelter staff meetings.
Oversee Family and Adult Shelters. Assist Sheherstaff with their Jobs. Maintain shelterstaff
schedule. Fill in shifts when necessary. Facilitate shelterstaff meetings. Submitting supply orders.
Oversaw operation of Seasonal Shelter. Transport arid advocate for guests, he|p In food shelf,
dellverfood to outside programs. Support guests struggling with recovery.

JUNE 2002 - MARCH 2014> MAY2016 - PRESENT

HEADREST

RESIDENTIAL MANAGER, RECOVERY ASSISTANT, HOTLINE COUNSaOR
Oversee Residential program. Facilitate groups, transport ciients, observe medications. One on
One counseling. Oversee staff. Maintain schedule. Mlnormalntenance repairs. Write dally notes
for individual as well as group. Enter data Into multiple databases. Answercalls ori the National
Suldde Prevention Hotline, rriake appropriate referrals. Notify and work with 911 for emergency
Interventions as needed.

EDUCATION

JUNE 1981
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JONOTHAN LAW HIGH SCHOOL

SKILLS

•  Greatworkingwith people. Have a calm
demeanor. Knowled^able about
homelessness.

•  Reliable, dependable, hardworking, punctual,
organized.

ACTIVITIES

Trainings include: Motivational Interviewing, CBT, DBT, Recovery Coach, Ethics, Trauma Informed
practices, Bridgesout of Poverty, 12 Core Functions, MAT, De-escalation techniques. Relapse
prevention. TrainedonHMISServlce Point, NH WiTS programs, (Carroll
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Eric C. Harbeck Jr

EDUCATION & TRAININGS

UNIVERSITY OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

Masters of Social Work, May 2020

COLBY-SAWYER COLLEGE

Bachelor of Arts in Psychology, May 2011

RECOVERY COACH ACADEMY—CCAR MODEL

Certificate of Completion, June 2016

PROFESSIONAL LICENSES

LICENSED CLINICAL SOCIAL WORKER (LCSW), License #2833

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

HEADREST, INC, Lebanon, NH
Director of Policy and Compliance - August 2022 — Present
Responsible for the development, implementation and accountability of all policies, procedures
and compliance of regulations at the agency.
•  Identify, implement and oversee staff trainings applicable to regulatory standards and li

censing agency and contract requirements.
• Review, revise and revise agency procedures and policies to reflect current infomiation

and relative updates to standards of care and practice.
• Work with agency staff to identify compliance issues and collaborate on a plan of correc

tion to rectify the issue.

COUNSELING ASSOCIATES, Claremont, Newport and Hanover, NH
Outpatient Therapist - September 2020 - July 2022
Provide individual counseling within the outpatient program for adults and adolescents. Respon
sible for assessments, diagnosis and treatment planning for new or transferred clients.
•  Provide mental health or substance use evaluations and assessments.

•  Support client's in developing a client-centered treatment plan, using focus on client
identified strengths.

•  Refer clients to appropriate services or providers to address other areas of concern the cli
ent identifies.

•  Collaborate with other health care professionals to address client needs.

COUNSELING ASSOCIATES, Claremont and Hanover, NH
Advanced Clinical Internship - September 2019 - May 2020
Provide individual counseling within the outpatient program for adults and adolescents. Respon
sible for assessments, diagnosis and treatment planning for new or transferred clients.
•  Responsible for either substance use or mental health disorder assessment and treatment

planning.

•  Collaborate with other health care professionals to meet all the client's needs.
• Work with the Integrated Care Team to assist clients with meeting needs as detennined

by their Social Determinates of Health.
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WEST CENTRAL BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, Lebanon, NH

MSW Student Intern — September 2018 — May 2019
Provide individual counseling within the Adult Outpatient Enhanced Care Program for adults
ages 18 and older. Responsible for providing treatment, completing quarterly reviews, assess
ments and treatment planning for new or transferred clients.
• Responsible for conducting assessments and completing treatment plans for all clients.
•  Extensive clinical work with dual diagnosis.
•  Collaboration with other mental health professionals within the mental health center.

HEADREST, INC., Lebanon, NH

Assistant Director - July 2018-Present
Work directly with the Executive Director to support programs, ensure agency policies and pro
cedures are withheld and contract requirements are met.
• All duties and responsibilities listed under Business Manager
•  Supervise employees as designated who have direct involvement in coordination of care

or billing operations.
Business Manager - May 2017-July 2018
Monitor agency financials including account receivables and account payables, conduct quality
review of service encounters prior to billing for payment.
•  Connect, maintain and supervise relationships with insurance agencies, claim submission

and reimbursement and compliance.
• Assist the Executive Director with any agency projects, grant funding proposals and other

duties as assigned.
• Assist the Board Treasurer and Executive Director in generating new fiscal year budget.
• Manage applications, renewals or temiination of benefits for all employees.
•  Review and correct payroll for submission to payroll ser\'ice, submit bills to payroll ser

vice.

Hotline/Residential Counselor - May 2014-July 2018
Support callers in crisis by providing active listening and referral to additional services. Assist
residents in various stages of recovery meet treatment goals established with their Case Man
ager.

Answer calls on all hotlines, prioritizing calls on the National Suicide Prevention Life
line.

Utilize active listening skills to provide comfort and understanding while identifying
ways to further assist the caller.
Enter call notes in the order which they were received detailing the contents of each call
while identifying the primary, secondary and tertiary purpose and type of call.
Observe residents administer their medications, verifying the correct medication, dose
and frequency.
Facilitate morning or evening group with residents discussing topics or matters concerned
in early recovery.
Provide case management to^ residents in the form of developing treatment plans, assist
ing residents in finding employment and alternative housing.
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Eric C. Harbeck Jr

SKILLS

•  Participated in a Primary Care Behavioral Health - Integrated Care Program, 2019.
•  Clinical knowledge and experience in use of Motivational Interviewing and Cognitive

Behavioral Therapy.

•  Proficient in use of computers and computer related applications.
•  Excellent qualitative research skills.

• Outstanding interpersonal communication skills.
• Team oriented.
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Judith A. Caprlo, JD, MS

Overview:

An accomplished criminal justice professional and clinician with the courts, corrections and community
providers. Skilled in planning and executing complex and multi-disciplinary projects.

Education:

JD, Roger Williams University School of Law, Bristol, Rl

MS, Human Development, Counseling & Family Relations, University of Rhode Island, Kingston
BS, Child Development & Family Relations, University of Rhode Island, Kingston

Work Experience:

Headrest, Inc.

Executive Director 2023-present

Responsible for the oversight and implementation of a behavioral health agency's strategic goals,
programmatic outcomes, overall operations, and financial stability. Enhance and sustain relationships
with the Board of Directors, external stakeholders, and community members.

Delaware Division of Substance Abuse and Mental Health 2018-2022

Director of Community Health Services

Responsible for leading the Division's initiatives related to crisis intervention, a medical-legal
partnership, emergency preparedness, policy development, and training facilitation. Spearhead a
statewide medical and legal partnership with a local legal aid society to identify and address unmet legal
needs to help shape systems transform into equal playing fields.

Accomplishments:

• Restructured, implemented, and oversee a statewide credentialing program for medical

and behavioral health professionals to authorize detention for an involuntary

psychiatric evaluation. Ensure compliance with State law and regulations. Achieved a

97% satisfaction rate.

•  Interface cooperatively with community providers to maximize client services.

• Develop, track, and evaluate trends for on-going performance improvement of a
medical-legal partnership with the Community Legal Aid Society.

Director of Crisis Intervention Services

Managed a statewide response center to identify and address individuals' behavioral health crises at the.
earliest intercept to divert them from unnecessary psychiatric hospitalization and/or incarceration.
Accomplishments:

•  Implemented evidence based screening tools to triage hotline calls for suicide and substance
use disorders.

•  Initiated a restructured statewide credentialing program for mental health screeners.

•  Planned and implemented a data driven peer initiative to enhance engagement in the

continuum of care.

•  Improved data collection by establishing a baseline to track referrals made and received.

•  Composed standard operating procedures.

•  Staff development to create a team-oriented approach to ensure clinical and operational
efficiency.

Delaware Department of Correction 2014-2018
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Deputy Warden

Directed, planned, and monitored the daily operations at Howard R. Young Correctional Institution.

Assisted Warden with strategic planning and overall facility management for over 1600 offenders.

Accomplishments:

•  Developed a reorganization plan for classification consistent with offenders' risk and need.

•  Initiated evidenced-based programs for the sentenced population.

•  Implemented an admission process for behavioral health programs.

•  Reviewed, revised and interpreted policies and procedures for staff and offenders.

Director of Behavioral Health

Managed a 14m dollar behavioral health contract to ensure the delivery of treatment services for

incarcerated adults by monitoring compliance with state and national standards, laws, policies and

procedures.

Accomplishments:

•  Evaluated the effectiveness of treatment programs to ensure they were evidenced-based.

•  Evaluated services and operations to determine needed revisions; recommended corrective

actions.

•  Reviewed, revised and wrote behavioral health care policies; prepared guidelines for medication

assisted treatment (vivitrol).

•  Designed a receiving intake process to match offender risk, needs and services.

•  Designed a treatment continuum to assess effectiveness in reducing recidivism.

•  Examined, assessed and proposed program initiatives to improve treatment services for

offenders diagnosed with behavioral health disorders.

•  Designed a behavioral health dashboard for an EMR to monitor program progress and

performance.

Regional Coordinator of Business Development

AdCare Hospital, Worcester, MA 2011 -2013

Created initiatives to integrate behavioral healthcare and criminal justice services.

Accomplishments:

•  Developed and built partnerships with government agencies, behavioral healthcare

organizations, and nonprofit agencies.

•  Generated revenue through seeking and writing grants, enhancing referral network, developing

substance abuse treatment initiatives for outpatient clinic.

•  Collaborated, organized and participated in statewide conferences and trainings in Rhode Island,

Massachusetts and Connecticut.

Director of Pretrial Services 2001-2011

Concurrent with Chief Clerk Pro Tempore (August 2008 -January 2009)

Rl District Court, Providence

Implemented and managed a statewide pretrial services program. Appointed by Chief Judge to serve as

Chief Clerk Pro Tempore to assist in the overall administration of the District Court.

Accomplishments:

•  Developed alternative bail and sentencing options. Estimated cost savings of $1,000,000.00.
•  Integrated public health and public safety by instituting best evidence practices; implemented

procedures for emergency civil commitment to psychiatric care for mentally ill offenders;

planned and facilitated trainings for the judiciary, law enforcement personnel and community

providers.

•  Identified, generated and secured alternative funding. Grant management and awarded a

$170,000 planning and implementation grant from the Office of Justice Programs for a court-
based Diversion Program.
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•  Delegated authority to divisional clerks; drafted memoranda for the Chief Judge and managed

policies and procedures for Court employees.

•  Established a statewide network of community providers to divert non-violent offenders

suffering from mental illness and co-occurring disorders from detention.

•  Established a monitoring unit for 1,700 defendants released to the community.

•  Developed and Implemented a statewide drug testing program.

•  Investigated defendants' backgrounds; presented bail violators; and negotiated with defense

counsel and prosecutors.

•  Personnel planning and supervision - fostered team-oriented and cohesive workplace

State Director of Correctional Services 1995 • 2001

Spectrum Health Systems, Inc., Worcester, MA

Contractor for Rl Department of Corrections

Spearheaded the transformation of addiction treatment programming across all adult male correctional

facilities.

Accomplishments:

•  Oversaw and managed substance abuse treatment contracts in excess of $800,000; worked
closely with DOC executive management and correctional staff to ensure contract specifications

and compliance.

•  Implemented therapeutic communities in 5 adult male facilities at the Rl Department of

Corrections and in 1 juvenile detention center at the Rl Training School.

•  Personnel planning and supervision; provided clinical supervision to 23 counselors.

•  Performed assessments, conducted individual and group counseling, managed discharge

planning; authorized enrollment and discharge in all treatment programs.

Other Professional Experience:

Adjunct Psychology Instructor (2019) Delaware Technical Community College, Georgetown Campus,

Consultant (2014), Riverwood Mental Health Services, Rl; Adjunct Psychology lnstructor(2010-2013),

Rhode Island College, Providence; Adjunct Criminal Justice Instructor (2006-2009) Gibbs College, '
Cranston, Rl.

Professional Memberships and Certifications:

Admitted to the Connecticut Bar Association

Delaware Certification Board, Certified Supervisor of Peer Specialists, 2019, 2021; Rl Board for

Certification of Chemical Dependency Professionals, Recognized Clinical Supervisor, 2000, 2011; Rhode

Island Mediators Association, 2010; Rl Council on Alcoholism, 2005-2007.

Publications

Review of Strategic Solutions: The International Communitv Corrections Association Examines Substance

Abuse. Edward Latessa, PhD., Corrections Today, April 2000.

Review of A Summarv of U.S. Supreme Court Decisions for Correctional Services. Sgt. Angelo DeLeon and
Gary H. Weddle, Ph.D., Loose-leaf Law Publications Inc., Corrections Today, 1999.
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KEY PERSONNEL

List those primarily responsible for meeting the terms and conditions of the agreement.
(Job descriptions not required for vacant positions.)

NH Department of Health and Human Services

Contractor Name: Headrest

NAME JOB TITLE

PERCENT PAID

FROM THIS

CONTRACT

AMOUNT PAID

FROM THIS

CONTRACT

Project Director TBD Project Director 100.00% $87,000.00
A! Carbonneau Hotline Coordinator 100.00% $67,166.00

Eric Harbeck Clinical Director 30.00% $25,500.00

Judith Caprio Executive Director 20.00% $20,000.00

0.00% $0.00

.. 0.00% $0.00
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Lori \¥«tv«r

IntcrimComnluioDcr

Ketja S. Foi
Director

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIViSION FOR BEHA VJORAL HEALTH

129 PLEASANT STREET. CONCORD. NH 03301
603-271.9344 l^«)0.852.334S Eit. 9544

Fax:603.271.4332 TDOAccesi: 1.800.73^2964 www.dhhs.eh.goy

May 23. 2023

His Exwilency. Governor Christopher T. Sunuhu
and the Honorable Council

State House
Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, DrvislonTor Behavioral Health, to
enter into a Sole Source amendment to an existing contract with Headrest (VC#175226-r601),
Lebanon, NH for continued 986 Suicide and Crisis Lifeline services, by increasing the price.iirriitatlon
by $664:982 from $1,013,781 to $1,678,763 and by extending the completion date'from June 30,
2023 to June 30.2025, effective July i, 2023, upon Governor arid Council approval. 21 % Federal
Funds. 79% General Funds.

The original contract was approved by Governor and Council on January 22,2020, item #14,
amended on May 19, 2021, item #20, and most recently amended on June 29, 2022, Item

Funds, are anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Years 2024 and 2025, upon the
availability and ,continu6d appropriation of funds In the future operating budget, with the authpri^ to
adjust budget line items wjthin the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years
through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

05-95-92-92201041170000 HEALTH & SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH &
HUMAN SERVICES, HNS:. BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, DIV OF, BUR^U OF MENTAL HEALTH
SERVICES, CMH PROGRAM SUPPORT

Stat^.
Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account ,
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revt^ .
Bud^t

2020 10a-500731
Contracts for'
ProgSvc .

92204117
$200,000. $0. $200,000

2021 100-500731
Contracts for;
Prog Syc ■

"92204117
$200,000 $0 $200,000

2022. 103^500731 ■
Contracts for "

ProgSvc -
92204117

$230,000 $0 $230,000

2023 1da-50073l' Cpntrads for j
ProgSvc 92204117

$200,000 $0 $206,000

2024 •10^500731
Contracts for

^ ProgSvc
92204117

$0 $260,000 $250.(M)0

2025 ,109-500731 Contracts for

prog Svc ,
92204117

$0 $250,000' $250,000:

Subtotal $830,000 $500,000 $1,330,000,
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His Excellency. Governor Chri8lopher T. Sununu
and the Horwable Cour)dl

Page 2 of 3 ' ,

05-92-92-920010-25940000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS
DEPT, HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV, DIV BEHAVIORAL HEALTH OPERATIONS,. 988
GRANT

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2023 074-500585

Grants For

Pub Asst

And Re!

92012594

$171,781 $0 $171,781

2024 074-500585

Grants For
Pub Asst

And Rel

92012594.

$0 $164,982 . $164,982

Subtotal $171,781 $164,982 $336,762

05-95^92-922010-41200000 HEALTH & SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH &
HUMAN SERVICES, HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, DIV OF, BUREAU OF MENTAL HEALTH
SERVICES, MENTAL HEALTH BLOCK GRANT

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2023 074-500585

Grants For

Pub Asst

And Rel

92254120

$12,000 $0 $12,000

'• Subtotal $12,000 $0 $12,000

Total $1,013,781 $664,982 $1,678,763

EXPLANATION

This request is Sole Source because the Department is seeking to extend the completion
dales beyond the available renev^al options and add funding. The Contractor is NeW Hampshire's
primary lifeline center accepting 988 suicide and crisis lifeline calls, texts and chats from the national
lifeline network. Since 9-8-8's launch in July of 2022 the Contractor has answer^ over 9,500 calls
for the state of New Hampshire. The Contractor is also a vital part of New Hampshire's Rapid
Response system and works with the Access Point to dispatch Rapid Response Teams to those In
a mental health or substarice misuse crisis.

The purpose of this request is for the ConUactor to continue to accept text, chat,, and phone
services ias one of two 988 Suicide and Crisis Lifelines. v;

Approximately 12.000 call/text/chat contacts per year will be primarily handled by the
Contractor during State'Fiscal Years 2024 and 2025.

The Contractor will continue to provide chat, text, and phone functions for 988 Suicide and
Crisis Lifeline which offers.free and confidential emotional support to people In a suicidal crisis or
emotional distress twenty-four (24) hours per day. seven (7) days per week, 365 days per year. The
Contractor's trained staff will continue to provide,individuals with Information and referral services,
personal support, crisis intervention, suicide Intervention, and referrals for imrnediate arid follow-up
services by continuing to collaborate with the Department's behavioral health Rapid Response
Access Point Contractor, when necessary, to dispatch Rapid Response (mobile crisis) Teams.
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His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
at>d the HofMraWe Council

Pege3ot3

The Department will monitor services by reviewing monthly reports submitted by the
Contractor.

Should the Governor arid Council not authorize this request, Individuals who are at risk for
suicide will not have a telephone, chat, or text lifeline available as resources, and will lose critical
intervention support services. Recent research shows that for every death by suicide, there are 135
people impacted by the death.

Area served: Statewide.

Source of Federal Funds: Assistance Listing Number #93.243, H79SM086074, Assistance
Listing Number #93.958, B09SM085371.

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, additional General Funds
will not be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

Lori Weaver

Interim Commissioner

I

(

The Dtparimttii 0/ Utalih and Human Seruicts'Mistion is^tojcin ccmmiiniiUs and families
in providing opportunities for cidzene to ochi'eue health and independence.
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #3

This Amendment to the Suicide Hotline Services contract is by and between the State of New Hampshire.
Department of Health and Human Services ("State" or "Department") and Headrest ("the Contractor").

'  WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor" and Executive Council
.on January 22. 2020. (Item #14), as amended on May 19, 2021 (Item #20), as amended on June 29. 2022,
(Item #30). the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and conditions specified
in the Contract as amended and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37. Gener^al Provisions, Paragraph 18. the Contract may be amended
upon written agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, and increase the price limitation, to
support continue delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions. Block 1.7. Completion Date, to read: '

June 30, 2025

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read: '

$1,678,763.

3. Modify Exhibit B, Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 2., to read:

2. This Agreement is funded by;

2.1. 1% Federal funds. Block Grants fpr Community Mental Health Services, as awarded on
5/17/21, by the Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration, Center for
Mental Health Services. ALN 93.958, FAIN B09SM085371.

2.2. 20% Federal funds. NH's strategy to address overall capacity, consistency, and quality of
988 sen/ices, as awarded on 4/15/22, by the Substance Abuse and Mental Health
Services Administration, Center for. Mental Health Services, ALN 93.243, FAIN
B79SM086074.

2.3. 79% General funds.

2.4." The Contractor shall use the funding in- accordance with Exhibit A. Scope of Services.
Section 2.2.

4. Modify Exhibit B, Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment. Section 5., Subsection 5.1. to
read:

5.1. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred in the
fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with the approved line iterns as
specified in Exhibit B-1, Budget through Exhibit B-7, Amendment #3, Budget.-

;• . - 'v.
5. Add Exhibit B-5, Amendment #3, Budget, which is attached hereto and Incorporated by reference

herein.

6. Add Exhibit B-6, Amendment #3, Budget, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference
herein.

7. Add Exhibit B-7, Amendment #3, Budget, Which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference
herein.

£
Headrest * A-S-1.3 Contractorlnilials

•57W702T
SS-2020-DBH-05-SUICI-01-A03 . Page 1 of 3 ; Date
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All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not modified by this Amendment remain
in full force and effect. This Amendment shall be effective July 1. 2023 upon Governor and Council
approval. •

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

S/30/2023

Date

■D«euSlgn«d by:

S-
Name^'")®"^ •
Title: Director

5/30/2023

Date

Headrest
■DMuSlgntdby:

Title: Executive Director

Headrest

SS-2020-DBH-05-SUICI-01-A03

A-S-1.2-

Page 2 of 3
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as.to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL "

0ocgSlsn«4 by;

olouvt 3 i,5/30/2023 1

^  •
Title: Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor arid Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting) •

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:
Title:

Headrest , A-S-1.2

SS-2020-OBH-05-SUICU01-A03 Page 3 of 3.



DocuSign Envelope ID: 8DD358B3-0O9C-49EA-A3C1-299C124E46C3

DocuSign Envelope ID: ECB30A3E-87FA-4406-A2EB-A6E1515DE2D5

CshM 9-*. AaMndsMM ). evtfgtt

'  Ntw K«n>pshin Depanmcm of HMhh and Human S4fvk«9
_  . . . . COMPLETE ONE BUDGET FORM FOR EACH BUDGET PCWOO

Instnictibns: nn but tha (Nract/lndlract cbtumm ority fw C'oniractor Stiirt (M appllcjbta) and Fun4ad by OHHS. Evarything aba wlB tutomatkaDy popuiata.

PiaNo Tin*; MciO* KaiAt* S*r»k«s

SuOgM PCftad: Jiar I. »22 • JwM M. K14

_ToUI_PiB^M»n_C»^ Cantncter Sh*r* (Mnefe ^ii«»a»a >1 OMM» towiao «n*»«"

I. Teu< 5al«fi»w»o«s »i2.Ma.eo U>.»1«.90 W*JT4M •

2. 6iaiioi>* 8«'»*ao ii.aM.OO si.aMM n.m.00 o.*7a.oo
3. C«a^w» a.iTi.oe

4.
ijeo.te TM.M

wid liUifiKra<w< ?.oao.aa Laeo.Do

s.eoe.M

3.2W.C0 iJ07
i. c«»w«mCia«nj«i

A<lOl •MLmM Loao

O.WIAO a.«oi^

• BaoaEwiaa*

10. M»rt«iinoCanum*i<c»ilo»

II. SunEOoaowoW Tfiiw*»o Laaojo

13. S«»*to««T»cn/*aii«m«rai

13. cam l>r*t*c omA mata^myr
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STATE OP NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION FOR BEHA YIORAL HEALTH

129 PLMSAIYT STREET. CONCORD. NH 03301

M3-271-9S44 1-SOO>SSZ-334S Eit 9S44

Fai: M3-271-4332 TDD Atcc»: 1-O0O-735-39M www.dhbi.iib.fov

June 13. 2022

His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council-

State House

Concord. New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services. Division for Behavioral Health,
to amend an existing contract with Headrest (VC#17522&-R001), Lebanon, NH for suicide hotline
prevention services, by increasing die price limilatlon by $213,761 from $800,000 to $1,013,781
with no change to the contract completion date of June 30. 2023, effective upon Governor and
Council approval. 18% Federal Funds. 82% General Funds.

The original contract was approved by Governor and Council on January 22. 2020, item
#14 and most recently amended vnth Governor and Council approval on May 19. 2021, item #20.

Funds are available In the following accounts for State Fiscar Years 2022 and 2023, with
the authority to adjust budget line items within the price limitation end encumbrances t>etween
stale fiscal years through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

05-95-92-92201M1170000 Heatth & Social Services, Department of Health & Human
Sorvlces, HNS: Behavioral Health. DIv of, Bureau of Mental Health Services, CMH Program
Support

. state

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised
Budget .

2020 103-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
92204117

$200,000 $0 $200,000

2021 103-500731
Contracts for

Prog Syc 92204117
$200,000 $0 $200,000

2022 103-500731
Contracts for i
Prog Svc 02204117

$200,000 $30,000 $230,000

2023 103-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc 92204117
$200,000 $0 $200,000

Subtotet $600,000 $30,000 $830,000

TJh D*portfntnl of Hnllh and Human Strvicu'Miuion U to join communilUt ondfamUie$
in providing opportuniiln for dtiuno to oehltut fioolth and indtptndtnet.
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05-92-92-920010-25940000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. HEALTH AND HUMAN 8VC8
DEPT. HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV. DIV BEHAVIORAL HEALTH OPERATIONS. 988
GRANT

State

Fiscal

Yoar

Class/

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised
Budget

2023 074-500585

Grants For
Pub Asst

And Rel

TBD $0 $171,761 $171,781

, Subtotal $0 $f7f.7af $171,781

05-95-92-922010-41200000 Health & Social Services. Department of . Health & Human
Services. HHS: Behavioral Health, DIv of, Bureau of Mental Health Senrices. Mental Health
Block Grant

State

Fiscal

Year

Class/

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)

' Amount

Revised

Budget

2023 074-500585

. Grants For

PubAsst

Arxf Rel

92254120 $0 $12,000 $12,000

SuOfota/ $0 $12,000 $12,000

Total $800,000 $213,781 $1,013,781

EXPLANATION

Tbe purpose of this request Is for the Contractor to expand the provision of the National
Suicide Prevention Lifeline services to include chat and text modalities. The Contractor will hire
staff dedicated to these modalities, and train current staff on these new functions.

Approximately 33,000 Indivlduats will be served during State Fiscal Years 2022 and 2023.

The Contractor will add chat and text functions to Lifeline services, which offer free and
confidential ernotional support to people in a suicidal crisis or emotional distress twenty-four (24)
hours per day. seven (7) days per week. The Contractor's trained staff vwill continue to provide
individuals with informiion and referral services, personal support, crisis IritBrvenlion and sulcido
intervehtlon. The Contractor wiircontinue to collaborate with the Department's behavioral health
crisis response access point contractor, when necessary, to dispatch mobile crisis response
teams.

In 2020. Congress designated the new 980 dialing code to operate through the existing
National Suicide Preventibn Lifeline's (1-B00-273-8255) network of over 200 locally operated and
funded crisis centers across the country. On Juiy 16. 2022, the U.S. will transition 1o using the
988-diallng code, providing an cppcrlunity to strengthen and expand the existing Lifeline. 988 Is
more than just an-easy-to^remember number, it Is. a direct connection to compassionate.
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accessible care and support foranyone experancing mental health-related distress. People can
also dial 988 if they are worried about a loved one wtto may need crisis support.

A best practice crisis system model iridudes someone to call (access points 24/7
call/text/chat), someone to respond (mobile crisis teams) and somewhere to go (fitabllization
services). New Hampshire Is ̂ ready building this model through the recent launch of the Rapid
Response acoess point and the expansion of mobile cnsis teams statewide and across the
lifespan. For many years, the Contractor has been the only local crisis center accepting lifeline
calls in NH. NH has been planning for 988 launch for the past year, which includes onboarding a
second call center (Rapid Re^nse. Access Point) and building capacity for tho currerrt
Contractor to expand to the ch^ and text modalities needed for the full 888 model. NH has
worked closely with 211 end 911 stakeholderB. throughout the planning process including on
transfer protocols and public communications.

The Department will monitor services by reviewing monthly reports submitted by the
Contractor.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request, individuals who are at risk for
suicide will not have a telephone, chat, or text lifeline available as resources, and will lose critical
Intervention support services. Recent research shows that for every completed suicide, there are
135 people impacted by death. The ramlTtcatlons of even one additional suicide are great.

Area served: Statewide.

Source of Federal Funds: Assistance Listing Number P93.243, H79SM086074

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available. .General Funds will not
.  be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted.

Lori A. Shibinette
Comrnissioner
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #2

This Amendment to the Suicide Hotline Services contract is by and between the Stale of New Hampshire.
Department of Health and Human Services ("Slate" or "Department") and Headrest ("^he Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on January 22. 2020, (Item #14), as amended on May 19, 2021, (Item #20). the Contractor agreed to
perform certain senrices based upon the terms and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and
in considefatlon of certain sums specified; arxJ

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions. Paragraph 10. the Contract may be amended
upon .written agreement of the parties and approval from the Goverror and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to increase the price limitation or modify the scope of services to support
continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in (he Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37. General Provisions. Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$1,013,781.
/

2: Modify Exhibit A. Scope of Services, by replacing it in its entirety with Exhibit A. Amendment #2.
Scope of Services, in order to update program requirements, which is attached hereto and
incorporated by reference herein.

3. Modify Exhibit 8-3. Budget, by replacing It in its entirety with Exhibit B-3, Amendment #2. Budget,
which Is attached hereto and Incorporated by reference herein.

4. Modify Exhibit B-4, Budget, by replacing it In its entirely with Exhibit B-4, Amendment #2, Budget,
;  which Is attached hereto and Incorporated by reference herein.

— M

Headrest A-S-1.2 Conirsclor Initials
6/15/2022

SS-2020-OBH-05-SUICI-01-A02 Page 1 of 3 * Dale
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All terms and corKjitions of the Contract ar>d prior arnendments not modified by this Amendment remain
in full force arxJ effect. This Amendment shall be effective upon Governor and Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below.

Slate of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

6/15/2032

Date

• DonSlgMkr

s.

Title. 0^ rector

6/1S/2022

Date

Headrest

SfTTorS
Name:

Title: Executive Director

Headresi

SS-2020-DBH-05-SUICI-01-A02

A-S-1..2

Page 2 of 3
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance. arKl
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

6/1S/2022

Date
Title: Attorney
amerwsyff

0Mv9isA*d km

'-Guarino

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:
Title:

Headresi A-S-1.2

SS-202O-OBH-05-SUlCt-Ol •A02 Page 3 ol 3
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Suicide Hotline Services

Exhibit A, Amendment #2

Scope of Services

1. Provisions Applicable to All Services

1.1. The Contractor shall submit a detailed description' of the language assistance
services they will provide to persons with limited English proficiency to ensure
meaningful access to their programs and/or.services within ten (10) days of the
contract effective date.

1.2. The Contractor shall participate in a kick-off meeting with the Department within
10 days of the contract effective date to review contract timelines, scope, and
deliverables.

1.3. The Contractor agrees thai, to the extent future state or federal legislation or
court orders may have an, impact on the Services. described herein, the
Department has the right to modify Sen/ice priorities and expenditure
requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve compliance therewith. -

1.4. For the purposes of this Agreement, the Department has identified the
V  Contractor as a Subreclpienl, In accordance with 2 CFR 200.300.

2. Scope of Work

2.1. The Contractor shall provide professionally trained staff for crisis center services
-  . following the required practices of the National Suicide Prevention Lifeline

(Lifeline). The Contractor shall provide services twenty-four (24) hours per day.
seven (7) days per week by answering calls, texts, and chats from .individuals
primarily located in New Hampshire in order to support individuals and offer local
interventions to individuals at risk of suicide, de-escalate crises, and provide
individuals with information and referrals relating to community services.

'  j '

2.2. Whereas the Contractor participates as a crisis intervention center withih the
■ National Suicide Prevention Lifeline Network, funded" through the.federal
Substance.Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration (SAMHSA), the
Contractor shall provide Lifeline-services in accordance with the eontractor's
Network Agreement (the Network Agreement), with Vibrant Emotional Health,
which is the SAMHSA Identified Administrator of the National.Suicide Prevention

Lifeline. • ^
It

2.3. The Contractor shall maintain its Network Agreement in Section 2.2 above for
the duration of this Agreenrient.

2.4. The Contractor shall maintain their national accreditation as a Lifeline service

and provide,the Department with a copy of any renewal or loss of cerlification
within five (5) days of said certification or its loss.

2.5. The Contractor shall use Lifeline protocols as described in the Network
Agreement when communicating and shall directly ask each individual about
sulcidality and shall'complete a suicide risk assessment that incorporates the
principles and subcomponents described in the Network Agreement. ■

[
Hoedresi . • , ' Exhibit A, AmerKlment #2 Contractof Initials ̂

-• . ' 6/15/2022
SS-2020-OBH-05-SUICI-01-A02 Pagelote Dale



DocuSign Envelope ID: 8DD358B3-0D9C-49EA-A3C1-299C124E46C3

OocuSlgn Envelope ID: ECB30A3E-67FA-4406-A2EB-A6E1515DE205

OocuSIgn Envelope ID: 01E3£$FC-SFC7-4E27.9i08-3C7F802lC066

New Hampshire Department o1 Health and Human Services
Suicide Hotline Services

Exhibit A, Amendment #2

2.6. Using the practices of engagement described in the Network Agreement, the
Contractor shall engage individuals and initiate all measures to offer evidence
based and local interventions to work with the individual to ensure safety of the
safety of the individuals.for whom there is information that a suicide attempt has
already been made or there is imminent'risk of suicide.

2.7. The Contractor shall follow up with Individuals either by telephone, te)ct or chat
post crisis, within 48 hours after contact, to ensure they are connected to other
services as applicable.

2.8. The Contractor shall maintain written, evidenced-based guidelines, policies, and
procedures consistent with the Network Agreement and the Lifeline protocols
for how staff shall respond to and assist individuals determined by the
Contractor to be a danger to themselves or to others such as, but not limited to;

2.6.1. How to conduct a lethality assessment of the applicable risk level;

2.8.2. Procedures applicable to the dispatch of rescue personnel, including,
without limitation, in those instances where an individual refuses to

volunteer cooperation; and

2.8.3. Procedures applicable to follow-up with the individual.

2.9. The Contractor shall maintain contact answer speed in line with the National
Suicide Prevention Lifeline standards, required for national Lifeline Centers as
governed by SAMHSA.

2.10. The Contractor shall not:

2.10.1. Utilize an answering service or cellular telephones to answer incoming
calls;

2.10.2. Utilize an automated attendant or any other system that requires a
caller to press a telephone key in order to be connected with Center
Staff;

2.10.3. Utilize a system where incoming calls are forwarded to a third party;'
and

2.10.4. Allow calls to be answered by a receptionist or any Center Staff not
trained to assist individuals.

2.11. The Contractor shall maintain and provide to the Department upon request,
written guidelines, policies, and procedures for how. to refer individuals to
community services so that individuals are given an appropriate array of options
with respect to treatment, care and/or follow-up; options shall not be limited in
any manner to organizations, facilities or providers affiliated with or related to
the Center.

. 2.12. The Contractor shall ensure professionally trained staffing at all times, including
staff dedicated to answering chats and texts.

p
Hesdresl Exhibll A, Amendmenl #2 Contractof initials ̂

6/15/2022
SS-2020-08H-05-SUICI-01-A02 Page 2 of 6 Date
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Suicide Hotline Services

Exhibit A, Amendment U2

2.13. The Contractor shall provide the Department with copies of their written policies
and procedures for providing the Lifeline service, including but not limited to;

2.13.1. Supervision and training requirements:

2.13.2. Code of ethics;

2.13.3. Grievance process; and

2.13.4. Quality assurance and program evaluation.

2.14. The Contractor shall ensure that staff receive all necessary training prior to
commencing any services under this Agreement .in accordance with guidelines
in the Network Agreement.

2.15. The Contractor shall provide ongoing In-service training for staff at intervals as
needed to ensure continuous quality service.,

2.16. The Cpnlracior shall collaborate with the Department and other providers,
including the provider that operates 211 in New Hampshire, to educate

'  communities and provide online and printed information and resources for.
statewide distribution.

2.17. The Contractor shall attend the State's Emergency Service meetings as
requested.

2.18. The Contractor shall enter into a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) with
the Department's Behavioral Health Crisis Response System contractor, to
establish a real-time connection to allow for the direct leveraging of the
appropriate provider based on need and acuity.

3. Reporting

3.1. The Contractor shall ensure the following de-identified and aggregated data is
provided to Vibrant Emotional Health on a monthly basis, according to the
Network Agreement,-during the term of this Agreement:
3.1.1. The number of calls, chats, and texts received;

3.1.2. The number of follow-up contacts by the Conlraclor with the individual-
post crisis; . .

3.1.3. Referrals and the reasons for the referrals and for what type of service;

. 3.1.4. ■ Answered calls, chats, and texts locally in New Hampshire and the
number of calls, chats, and texts that were re-routed to another out-of-
stale contact center; and

3.1.5. Outreach and education efforts with a description of whaLwas done
and results, if it can be determined.

3.2. The Contractor shall ensure that neither protected health information (PHI) nor
personally, identifiable information (Pll) is processed or stored outside of the
system used by Vibrant Emotional Health.

Headresl • Exhibil A. Amendmcnl ' Contraclor Inllials ̂
6/15/2022
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,  Exhibit A, Amendment #2

3.3., The Contractor shall provide:

3.3.1. A copy of the national, suicide prevention report for New-Hampshire
that is submitted to the National Suicide Prevention Lifeline; and

3.3.2. A copy of the Accreditation certificate within 10 days of the effective
daleof this contract.

4.,-Performance Measures

4.1. The Contractor's performance shall be measured by the following:

4.1.1. At least 5% increased portion of calls, chats, and texts answered in
state rather than re-routed to an out-of-state contact center compared
to last year;

4.1.2. At least 5% increased number of follow-ups and communication with .
.  individuals post crisis compared to last year; and

4.1.3. At least 5% increased community outreach and education of this
service compared to last year.

5. Exhibits Incorporated

5.1. The Contractor shall use and disclose Protected Health Information in
compliance with the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information (Privacy Rule) (45 CFR Paris 160 and 164) under the Health
Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA) of 1996, and iri
accordance with the attached Exhibit I. Business Associate Agreement, which
has been executed by the parties.

5.2. The Contractor shall manage all confidential data related to this Agreement in
accordance with the terms., of Exhibit K, DHHS Information Security
Requirements.

5.3. The Contractor shall comply with ail Exhibits D through K, which are attached
hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

6. Maintenance of Fiscal Integrity

6.1. In order to enable the Department to evaluate the Contractor's fiscal integrity,
the Contractor agrees to subrnit to the Department monthly, the Balance Sheet,
Profit and Loss Statement, and Cash Flow Statement.fof the Contractor. The
Profil and Loss Statement shall include a budget column allowing for budget to
actual analysis. Statements shall be submitted within thirty (30) calendar days
after each month end. The Contractor shall be evaluated oh the following:

6.1.1. Days of Cash on Hand:

6.1.1.1. Definition: The days of operating expenses that can,.be
covered.by the unrestricted cash ori hand.

X—09 '

Headresl E*hibil A. Amendmern #2 Contractof Iniiiats ̂
5/1S/2022
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Suicide Hotline Services

Exhibit A, Amendment #2

6.1.1.2. Formula: Cash, cash equivalents and short term investments
divided by total operating expenditures, less
depreciation/amortization and in-kind plus principal payments
on debt divided by days in the reporting period. The short-lenn
investments as used above shall mature within three (3)
months and should not include common stock.

6.1.1.3. Performance Standard: The Contfaclor shall have enough
cash and cash equivalents to cover expenditures for a
minimum of thirty (30) calendar days with no variance allowed.

6.1.2. Current Ratio: ^

6.1.2.1. Definition: A measure of the Contractor's total current assets
available to cover the cost of current liabilities.

6.1.2.2. Formula: Tola! current assets divided by tola! current liabilities.

6.1.2.3. Performance Standard: The Contractor shall maintain a

minimum current ratio of 1.5:1 with 10% variance allowed.

6.1.3. Debt Service Coverage Ratio;

6.1.3.1. Rationale: This ratio Illustrates the Contractor's ability to cover
•  the cost of its current portion of its long-term debt.

6.1.3.2. Definition: The ratio of Net Income to the year to date debt
service. '

'■ 6.1.3.3. Formula: Net Inconie plus Depreciation/Amortization Expense
plus Interest Expense divided by year to date debt service-

•  (principal and interest) over the next twelve (12) months.
6.1.3.4. Source of Data: The Contractor's Monthly Financial

Statements Identifying current portion of long-term debt
payments (principal and interest).

6.1.3.5. Performance Standard: The Contractor shall maintain a
minimum standard df 1.2:1 with no variance allowed.

6.1.4. Net Assets to Total Assets: -

6.1.4.1. Rationale: This ratio is an indication of the Contractor's ability
to cover, its liabilities.

6.1.4.2. Deftnition: The ratio of the Contractor's net assets to total
assets. ;

6.1.4.3. Formula: Net assets (total assets less total liabilities) divided
by total assets.

>6.1.4.4. Source of Data: The Contractor's Monthly Financial
Statements.

HeatJresl •" ExWCIi A, Amendmenl #2 Contraclor Initials
6/1S/2022

SS-2020-OBH-O^SUICI-6vA02 Page 5 of 6 .. • Dale
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Suicide Hotline Services

Exhibit A, Amendment #2

6.1.4.5. Performance Standard: The Contractor, shall maintain a
minimum ratio of .30:1, with a 20% variance allowed.

6.2. In order to enable the Department to evaluate the Contractor's fiscal integrity,
'  the Contractor agrees to submit to the Department monthly, the Balance Sheet,

the Profit and Loss statement for the month and year-to-date for the agency
and the Profit and Loss statement for the month and year-to-date for the
program t>eing funded with this contract.

6.3. In the event that the Contractor does not meet either:

6.3.1. The standard regarding Days of Cash on Hand and the standard
regarding Current Ratio for two (2) consecutive months; or

6.3.2. Three (3) or more of any of the Maintenance of Fiscal Integrity
standards for three (3) consecutive months, then

6.3.3. The Department may require that the Contractor meet with Department
staff to explain the reasons that the Contractor has not met the
standards.

6.3.4. The Department may require the Contractor to submit a
comprehensive corrective action plan within thirty (30) calendar days of
notification that 6.3.1. and/or 6.3.2.' have not been met.

6.3.4.1. The Contractor shall update the corrective action plan at least
every thirty (30) calendar days until compliance is achieved. •

6.3.4.2. The Contractor shall provide additional information to assure
continued access to services as requested by the Department.
The Contractor shall provide requested information in a
timeframe agreed upon by both parties.

6.4. The Contractor shall inform the Department by phone and by email within
twenty-four .(24) hours of when any key Contractor staff- learn of any actual or
likely litigation, investigation, complaint, daim, or transaction that may

"'-'reasonably b.e considered to have a material financial impact on and/or
■  materially impact or impair the ability of the Contractor to perform under .this
Agreement with the Department.

6.5. The monthly^Balance Sheet, Profit & Loss Statement, Cash Flow Statement,
and all other financial reports- shall be based on the accrual method of
accounting and include the Contractor's total revenues and expenditures
whether or not generated by or resulting from funds provided pursuant to this
Agreement. These reports are due within thirty (30) calendar days after the end
of each month.

cr

Headfcsl ExhlbilA. AmendmeniM Contraciof Initials
6/15/2022

SS-2020-OBH-05.SUICI-01 •A02 Page 6 of 6 Dale J
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L«rl A. Shlbloctlf

C»mmlul«n!rr

Ktijt S. P«i
Olrrcior

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPAJ^TMENT OF HE>aTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

D! VISION FOR BEHA VIORA L HEAL TH
\  *

129 PLEASANT STREET. CONCORO.NH 0J30I
«a)'27t>9S44 l-800-<S2O34SeiL9S44

Fis: 603*27 M332 TDO Arcm: l>S00'73S^2P64 M'mv.dhht.nh.ior

April 6. 2021

His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
end the Honorable Council

Stele House

Concord. New Hampshire 03301 ■ *
REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services. Division for Behavioral Health, to enter
Into a sole source amendment to.an existing contract with Headrest (VC# 175226-R0C1), Lebanori. NH
for suicide hotline prevention services, by exercising a contract renewal option by increasing the price
limiiation by $400,000 from $400,000 to $600,000 and by eictendlng the completion date from June 30.
2021 to June 30.2023 effective upon Governor and Council approval. tOOVo General Funds.

The original contract was approved by Governor and Council on January 22. 202Q. item #14.

Funds are anticipated to be available in the following account for State Fiscal Years 2022 and 2023,
with the authority to adjust budget line Items wilhir) the price limitation and encumbrances between stale
fiscai years through the Budget OfTice. if needed.and justified..

05-95-92-922010-41170000 Health & Social Services, Department of Health & Human Services, HHS:
Behavioral Health, Otv of. Bureau of Mental Health Services. CMH Program Support.

State

Fiscal

• Year

Class/

Account
Class Title

Job

' Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decrease
d) Amount

Revised

Budget

2020 100-500731
Contracts for-

Prog Syc
92204117

$200,000 . SO $200,000

'2021 100-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
92204117

$200,000 $0 $200:000

,2022 100-500731
Conlracls for
Rrog Svc '92204117

$0 $200,000 $200,000

"2023 100-500731
Contracts for'

Prog Svc
92204117

$0 ■$200,000 ■ $200,000

Total $$400,000 $400,000 $800,000

EXPLANATION

This request is sole source because a prior action was approved as sole source and MOP 150
requires any subsequent amendments to be labeled as sole source.

The purpose of this request is to extend the current contract by two years for the provision of suicide
hotline services that offer free and confidential emotional support to people in a suicidal crisis or emotional
distress twenty-four (24) hours per day, seven (7) days per week. The Contractor provides callers with
information and referrais to community services and health care providers as indicated by the callers'

The OepofUntnX 0/ He^Uh oixd Humon Seraittt' Mittion u to join contmuiiitiu oitd /omiIiVi
i'l prouiding eppcriuniilti for eillitni to othievc htotih and independence.
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Kb Eloeflefvy.'Oovefnor CMxtopher T. Sviucui
- and (h« KonefiMb CouncB

Page So'}

neods. This action aiao adds a provision requiring the contractor to establish a real-time corwoction to
allow for the c&ect transfer of calls to the Department's Behavioral Health Crisis Response System. -

The Contractor receives cads nationwide, but the cellars are primarily individuals located In New
Hampshire.

Approidmately 15.000 catlers wll) be served from July 1, 2021 to Jurte 30.2023.

The Contractor (s New Hampshire's only call center accredited through the National Suidde
Prevention tifellne. They receive cells from Irtdivlduab (n New Hempshire (end a smaD number from other
states) who either are expoHencing thoughts of eulcido themaetves. or are cainng about a loved one who
may be at risk for suicide. The Contrsctofe trained staff provide caliers with Information and referral
oervices. personal-euppoft, crisis Intervention end. suidde intervention. When necessary, the Contractor
collaborates wfth the Department's proposed behavioral health crisis response access point contractor to
dispatch mobile crisis response teams.

The National Suicide Prevention Lifeline uses one telephone rtumber nationwide, end ensures
services deslgrwd to prevent suicide are evaltable to ell New Hampshire residents. The Contractor win link

-  Individuals at risk of suicide to services availabia statewide, and provides education about aulctde to
individuals and families statewide.

The Department wtil monitor the effectrveness of the Contractor ar>d the deQvery of services
required under this contract using the following' performance measures:

• Percentage of calls answered In New Hampshire rather than re-routed to en out of state call
center, compared to the previous year.

•  Increase In number of foQow-ups and communication with callers post-crlsJs.

•  Increase In quantity ccmmynlty outreach and education efforts.

As referenced in the Exhibit C-1, Rovrsions to Standard Contract Language, Section 2, Renewal.,
subsection '2.1 of this contract, the parties have the option to extend contract services for up to two (2)
additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, evaHeble funding, agreement of the.
parties and approval of the Governor artd Executiye Councii. The Departmenl is requesting approval to
exerdse both of the two (2) remairting years of renewal

Should the Governor and Executi^ Council not auihortze (his request, Individuals who are at risk
for suidde will not have a teiephon'e lifeline available as e resource, and wlll lose crttlcal Intervention
support service. RecenI research ehows that for every completed suicide, there are 135 people Impacted
by the death. The ramincations of even one additional suicide are greal. In addition. New Harnpshlre would
no longer have access to a nationally recognized number that links callers to critical eeiylces that ere
specially designed to prevent suicide.

Area served; Statewide

Respectfully aubmltted.

Lorl A. Shiblnette

Commissioner
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State of New Hampshiro

Department of Health and Human Services
Amendment #1

This Amendment to.lhe Suicide Hotline Servlcos contract Is by and between the State of New Hamp^ire.
Department of Health and Human Services ("State" or "Oepartmenr) and Headrest (the Contractor').
WHEREAS pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor .and Executive Council
on January'22 2020. (Item U) the Contrector agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms
and conditlohs'specrfied in the Contract, and In consideration of certain sums specified: .and
WHEREAS pursuant to Form P-37. General Provisions. Paragraph 18. and Exhibit C-i, Revisions to
Standard CdhVact Language. Section 2. Renewal. Subsection 2.1, the ConUad may be amended upon
wrmen agreement of the parties end approval from the Governor and Executive Counal; and
WHEREAS, the parties egreo to .oxtond the lorm of the agreerfient. increase the price fimitation, and
modify the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and
NOW THEREFORE, In conslderatlonaf the foregoing and the mutual covenants end conditions contairied
In the Contract and sei forth here'm, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Prpyls'lpns. Block 1.7. Completion Date, to read:

June 3.0. 2023.

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to redd:

$800,000'

3. Exhibit A. Scope.of Services, Section 2. Scope of Work by adding Subsection 2.19 to read:
2 19 The Contractor shall enter Into a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) with the

Departmenl'B Behavioral Health Crisis Response System contractor to establish a
real-time,connection to allow for the direct transfer of call§.- 1

4. Arid Exhibit B-3 Budget, which Is attached hereto and ir^corporated by reference herein.
5. Add Exhibit B-4 BudgeL which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference-herein.

Hoadfcsl Contractor InlllalsSS-2020-OBH-C5-SUICI-A0i

A-.S-l.O • Pago I ol 3
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All terms arxJ conditions of the Contract not modified by .this Amendment remain in full force and effect.
This Amendment shall be upon the date of Govemor and Executive Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the dale .written below,

Slate of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

4/16/2021

Date

V
.  o»niiF««>r

I
Title: Df rector

Headrest

4/15/2021

Date

DW»M

Tllle: Execotive Director

SS-2020-08H-05-SUICI-A01

AS-1.0

HoOdrCSl

Page 2 of 3
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OocuSign Envetope 10:0 i29e40S-eEA4^e4F4C33^ FCF020A8A4E

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

4/16/2021

Date
gj^^OggmTTT-FtTror

Title: Attorney

I hereby certify (hat the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

SS-2020-D8H05-SUICI-AOt

A-S-1.0

Hoadro$t

Page 3 of 3 -
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STATt OF NEW HAMPSHTRE

department of health and hdman services

£)/m/0/VF0J? BEHA VIORAL HEALTH

n^PtCASANTSTRCrr.CONCORO.NH O330I

603-271.9544 I40&4$t-334S £iL 9944

Tai: 603-17MU2 TOOAtc'ut: I400-73S2964 •nrw.dhht.nh.|ov

January 7, 2020

His Cxcctlency. Governor Christopher T. $ununu
end the Honorable Council

State House
Concord. New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services. Division for Behavioral Health, to enter
into a retroactive, sole source agreement with Headrest,.(Vendor P 175226 R001). 14 Church Street.
Lebanon. NH. 03766. to provide suicide, hotline prevention services, in an-amount not to exceed
$400,000. effective retroactive to July 1. 2019 upon Governor and Executive Council approval through
June 30.2021. IOOVb General Funds.

Funds are available in the following account for State Fiscal Years 2020 and 2021, wlih authority
to adjust budget line items within the price limllallon and adjust encumbrances between Stale Fiscal
Years through the Budget'Office if needed and justiHed.

05-95-92-922010-41170000 Health & Social Services, Department of Health B Human Services.
HHS: Behavioral Health, Olv of, Bureau of hflental Health Services, CMH Program Support.

State Fiscal Year ClassfAccouni Class Title Total Amount

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc $200,000

2021 102-600731 Contracts for Prog Svc $200,000

.

Total $400,000

EXPLANATION

This request is retroacllve because the funding for these services., which began July -1. 2019.
was unavailable due to the continuing resolution. Funds became available on September 26.2019 after,
the Governor signed the State Fiscal Year 2020-2021 operating budget into law.

This request is solo source because House Bili 3. of the 2019 New Hampshire Regular
Legislative Session, appropriates $200,000 to the Department each Stale Fiscal Year and requires it to
fund a New Hampshire-based, nationally accredhed suicide hotline service. Headrest is the only agency
In New Hampshire with this- accredhaiion.

t  ' •

The purpose of (his request is for Headrest to provide suicide holiirie services that offer free and
confidenlial emotional support to people in a suicidal crisis or emolional distress tweniy-four (24) hours
per day. seven (7) days per week. Headrest vwil respond to callers primarily located in New Hampshire
and provide callers with information and referrals relating to community services. •

Each year. Headrest answers and" supports approximately 4.000 callers from New Hampshire
wtio are seeking support through the national suicide prevenlion lifeline. Therefore, the Oepartmeni
anticipates approximalely this many individuals will be served from July 1. 2019 through June 30. 2020.
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Headrest is New Hampshire's onty call center accredited through the National Suicide Prevention
Lifeline (NSPL). Headrest answers calls from individuals calling from Hampshire (and a smaO
number from other states) who are either experiencing thoughts of suicide themselves, or are calling

• about a loved one who may be at risk for suicide. Headrest's trained staff provide callers with information
and referral services, personal support, crisis tnlervenilon and suicide, intervention. The ten community
mental health centers have twenty-four (24) hours per day. seven (7) days per week services to also
address these types of calls, but have different numbers and/or areas of the stale In which they cover
The NSPL has one number, no matter where in the country the call is made, which makes is easier to
remember, serves individuals who are traveling throijgh the stele and also serves individuals who. for a
variety of reasons, may not want to call a community mental health center. This contract will cr>syre
services designed to prevent suicide are available to-New Hampshire residents, link individuals at risk to.
sen/ices. and provide education to thclocal communiiy. individuais-and families.

The Department will monitor the effectiveness of the Contractor and the delivery of services
required under this contract using Ihe following performance measures:

•  Increased proportion of calls answered in New Hampshire rather than re-routed to an out
of slate call center compared to last year. '

•  Increased number of follow-ups and communication with callers post crlsis.compared to
last year.

•  Increased community outreach and education" of. this service compared to last year.

As referericed in the Exhibit C-1. Revisions to Standard Contract Language of this contract, the
parties have the option to extend contract services for up to two (2) additional years, contingent upon
satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, agreement of the parties and approval of Ihe Governor
and Executive Council.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not authorize this request. Individuals who are at risk
for suicide will no! have the lifeline available as a resource and consequently, may follow through on their
thoughts to die. Recent research shovrt that for every completed suicide, there are 135 peopi6 impacted
by the death. The ramincations of even one additional suicide are great. New Hampshire would no
longer have access to a nalionally recognized number that, links callers to critical services that are
specially designed to prevent'Suicide.

Area served; Statewide •

Source of Funds: 100% General Funds.

Respecrtully (Redsu

kerrin A. Rounds
Acting Commissioner

77>e Oc/Mirimciit c/Heoli/i end Hu/non Scvitti'Mluien h lejei" eofntui/iiliu o»irf /fimHict
i/i prevfiiinj epfio^litniiia fo' dilute 19 ethitvt htoUh end ifidtpenritAn.
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AGREEMENT ^ 3
The State of New Kempthirc and the Contractor hereby muiualiy afrce aa followi:

CENERAt PROVISIONS

I. n>E?mriCATioN.

I.I Sute Atcncy Name
NH Dcpamncrtt of Health and Human Servicn

1.3 State ABcncy Atfdreo
139 Pluaant Street

Coneofd. NH0330I0857

1.3 Coniroctoi Name

Hcadraai

I.a Conmcior'Addrui

14 Church Street

Ubanon NH 03766

1.5 Cootrecior Phone

Number

603-448-4872

1.6 Account Niusbcr

05'095-092.9330l0^ll 70000-

I02.J0073I

1.7 Conplciioo Date

June 30.2021

1.8 Price Lirailalion

MOO.OOO

1.9 ContraclinsOfTiccr for State Agency
Nathan D. White, Director

1.10 Sute AgcfKyTclcphorK Number
603-37I-96]}

I.II ContractorSignaiurc LO Name and Title of Contractor Sigruiory

.1) Aeknowicdgemcni: S,6ie of . County of

On • before (he undcriigncdofTiccr. pcraonilly appeared the person idcntiricd in bloeli i.ll.oraatitfectorily
proven lo be the pcraon whose rumc it signed in block 1. M. and aeknowlcdgcd that s/hc caccuicd ihit document in Ihc capecliy
'indicaicd in block 1.12. . ; "

■ 13.1 Sigri'iurcof Noury Public or Jiuticc of the Peace X/rnkPy J. NotsnrPubCk
%Cofnnllntor>GiptreaJufy 10,2014

rScall
1.13.2 NarTKPndTiilcofNouryorJusiiceonhcPtacc . /S j/

S  N^fi^ ^biiQ

Date:

I. ISy Name and^itlc of Stale Agency Signatory

h^J-rh
iri6 Approval by the N.H. Oepanmcni of Adminrsirttion. Divisiort ofTcrsonnel 0Scppll<oble)

By: Director, On:

LI7 Approval by.ihc'^orney Ccncral (Fonrt. Subsuncc and Execution) (ifoppiieabU)

/9//^8s ■ ilo[^<=>
1.-I8 ^pprd^^^hc Governor and Executive Council (if opplUable)

By: Or»:

ppgc I of 4
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J. EMPLOYMENT OF COhfTJUCTOIVSERVICtS TO
BE PERFORMED. The$uieofN<wHimpsMfe,»ciin8
through (he igcncyi^niified m block l.i CSute"), cnpgci
connaor identified in block 1.3 C^RuectoO to perform,
arrd (he Contrtcior ihaJ I perform, the work or nie of goods, or.
both, idcniiricd and more ptnicularly detcrtbed in ihe attached ■
CXNIBIT A vvfiich it iocorporticd herein by rtference
fScTviui").

I

y EFFECTIVE DaTE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.

3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of ihia Agtccmeni lo ihe
contrvy. and iwbject le the approval of the Cevcmer and
Eaccuiivc Council of (he Suie of New Hampthjrc; if
appUcable, this Apeemcni, and all obligacions of ihc panla
hereurtder. ihall become efTeeiive or the dale ihe Governor
and Eiecuiive Council approve this Agrcemeni'ai indicated in,
bloek 1.18. unku no luch approval is required. <n svhich eaie
Ihe Agreement thaO become effeciive on the dale the
Agreement it Signed by ihc.Siaic Agency as thovm in biKk
•l.ldC'Effeeiive Due").'
3.2 If the Conoactor conimences the Services prior to the
Effective Oiic, all Services performed by the Concnctor prior
tothoEfTectivc Dale ihatl be perforrrrcd at the sole risk of the
Contnctor, and in the event that (his Agreement does not
beoomc effective, the Stiie shall have no liabiliry to the
Contractor, including without limitation, any obligation lo pay
the Conuouor for any coals incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
ce'onry, all obligations of the State hcrcund^, including,
without limluiion, the continuance of payments hcrcunder, arc
contingent upon the availability and coaiinued oppropriaiion
of fiirtds, anti in no event thall the State be liable for any.
payments he/cundcr in excess of such available appropriated
funilj. In the event.of B reduction or termination of
appropriated funds, the Stale thall have the right to withhold
paymeni until luch firnds become iviilablc. if ever, end shall
have the right to terminate this Agicemcni immcdialcly upon
giving the Contractor notice pfsuch termination. The State
shoi! not be re()uired to transfer furtds from any other account
to Ibc Account identified In block 1.6 in (he event funds in that
Account ari reduced or urtavallable.

5. contract'pricc/price limitation/
PAYMENT.

S. I The contract price, method of paymeni. and terms of
paymeni are identified and more particularly described in ■
E)OilBlT 6 which is incorporated herein by reference.
5.2 The payment by the Stole of (he contract price shall be the
only and the complete rcimburiemeni to (he Contractor for all
cipe'nsci, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor iit the
performance hereof, and shall be (he only and the complete
compensation to (he Contractor for the Services. The State
shall have no-liability (othe Conrractorother thin the'contrict
price.

Page 2

5.3 Tite Slate reserves the right to offset from any amounts
Otherwise payable to the Contnctor under this Agreement '
those liquidated ameunts required or permined by N.M. RSA
.60:7 (hrough RSA 80:7-c or any other ptoviaioo of bw.
5.4 Nocwithstanding any provision in this 'Agreement to the
contrary, and itotwiihuanding unexpected circumttaiseei. in <.
no event shall the total of all paymerm authorized, or actually
made hcrcur)dcr, exceed (he Price Limitarion act forth io block

1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND RECUUtTIONS/EQUAL EMPLOYMENT

OPPORTUNITY.
6.1 la cennection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all suiutes. laws, regulations,
and orders of federal, state, county or municipal authoriiica
which impoic any obligation or duty upon the Contractor,
including, bul not limited to. civil rights and equal opportunity
laws. This may irKludc (he requirement to utilize auxiliary
aids and servjca to ensure that persons with communiution
disabilities. i(\clwding visiort. hearing and speech, can
communicate with, receive inforrmiioa from, and convey,
information to the Contractor, In addiiicm, (he Coniracior
shall comply with all applicable copyrigh( laws, .
6.2 During the term of (his Agreemcni. the Contractor shall
not discriminicc igiintt employees or appltcanu for
employment because of race, color, religion, creed, age, acx,
hindlcip, sexual orientation, or riarional origin and will lake .
affirmslive action lo prevent such discnmirtatien.
6.3 If this Agreement is funded in any pan by momes of (he
United Slaics. the Contnctor thai) comply with all the
provisions ofExecuiive Order No. ll246C'Equal
Employment Opporturtily"), as supplemented by the
regulations of i)k United States Ocpanmeni of Labor (41
C.F.R, Pen 60). and with any rules, regulaiiottt end gutdelinea
as the Suic of New Hampshire or the United States issue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor further agrcci to
permii the Stale or United States access to any of the
Contractor's books, record and accounts for the purpose of.
ascertaining compliance with all rules, rcfulalJoni and orders,
and the covenanu, terms and conditions of this Agroement.

7.'PERSONNEL.
7.1 The Contractor shall at its own eipcnse provide all
pcnortnel nKcssory to perform the Services. The Contractor '

, warrants thai all personnel engaged in the Services thall be
qualified to perform ih'e Services, and shall be properly
licensed and otherwitc<authorited to do to under all applicable
laws.

.7.2 Unieis otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of ̂
this Agrccmaii, and for a period of six'(6) months tflcr the
Completion Date in block 1.7. the Contractor shall not hire,
end shall not permit any subconirocior or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined efTort lo
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State
employee'or ofTicii). who is maierially involved in the
procurement, admioisiraiion ot performance of this

of A

Contractor Initials Ct ̂  •
Date
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Agreemesl. This pravisioo shell survive tcnninelion of this
Agreement.

7.3 The Contnaing Officer specified in block 1.9. Of his or
her tuocctsor. Shell be ihcSiece'tftpfctcruerive. In the event
of eny dispute concemirtg the inierpreieiion of this Agreement,
ihe Corilrtctirtg OrTiees'f decision shili be fine) for (he Sieic.

8. CVCKT OF OEFAULT/REMCOieS.
8.1 Any one or more of the following ecu or omissions of ihe
Conneior ihall coftniruic en cvefti of defiuti hercunder

rEventof.OeCiuli"): •
i.l.l feilure to perform ihe Servkea uiitficibrtlyor on
schedule:
B. 1.7 foilure to submit any report required hercunder: endfor -
8.1.3 foilure to perforut any oi^r covenam. term'or condition
of this Agreement.
8.} Upon the oceuncncc of any Event of Default, the State
may lake any one, or more, or all, of (he following aeiiens;
8.2.1 give the Coniricior a wrinen notice specifying the Event
of Default and requiring it to be rcrrtcdied within, in the
absence of a gruier or lesser spccirication of time, thirty (30)
days from the date of the notice; end if the Cvcni of Default is
not timely remedied, lerminiic this Agreement,cfTeciive two
(2) days after giving the Contractor notice of lerminaiion;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a 'nriite'n notice tpecifyinf the Event
of Default and suspending ell paymcnii to be made under this
Agreement artd ordering that the portion of (he contract price
.which would otherwise occruc to (he Contractor iluring (he
period from the date of sueb notice until such time as the State
deiermlhes that the Cooirsctor has cured the Event of Default

shall never be paid to the Contractor;
6.2.3 set off against any other obligations the State may owe to
the Contnciof any darrtagcs the Sute sufTers by reason of any
Event of Default; andfor'
8.2.4 treat the Agreement as breached end pursue any of iu
remediu at law or in equity, or both.

9. DATAyACCESS/CONFIOENTlALITV/

preservation.-

9.1 As used in this Agreement, the word "data'' shall mean alt
informition end Ihings developed or obtained during the
performance of. or acquired or developed by rcoton of. this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
ntct, fonriuiac. surveys, niaps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictoriil reprodueiioru. drawings, analytei,
graphic reprtscniations, computer programs, computer
printouts, noiu, Icners, memormda, papers, and documents,
all .whether nniihed or unfinished.

9.2 All dale and any property which has been received from
the Stale or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
ihoil be.returned to the State upon dcrrund or upon
icrminaiion of this Agreement for any reason.
9.3 Conrideniiiliry of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chipter9l>A oroihercKisiing law. Disclosure of data
requires prior wriiien approvol of the Stale.

. Page

10. ITRMiNATION. In the event ofan early iemtinailcm of
this Agrecmm for any reason other than the completion of (he
Services, the Contraeiof shall deliver to the Connctieg
OITicer, not later than fifteen (IS) days after the date of
icnrunation. a report ('Termination Report") describing in
detail ill Services performed, and the controci price earned, to
and inclutjing (he dale of termination. The form, subject
matur. content, and number of copies of Ihe Termination
Report Shalt be identical lo'ihose of any Final Report
dCKribed in the attached EXHIBfT A.

11. contractor s RCUTION.TO the STATE. In
the performance of ihii Agreement the Contractor it in all

respects an independeni coniracior. and is neither an agent nor
an employee of the State. Neiihci the Concneior nor any of iu
ofTiccrs, employees, agents or members shall have euihority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers' convpcnsaiion
or other cmolumemi provided by the State le its employees.

12. assicnment/delecation/subcoktracts.

The Contractor shall rtot assign, or otherwise eransfcr any
imemt in this Agreement without the prior written notice and
consent of the State. None of the Services shall be

subcontracted by the Conmctor without (he prior written
notice and corucnt of (he State.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor ihall defend,
indemnify and held harmless the State, iu olTiCcrs and
employees, from and against any and all loues lufTcred by the
Sute, iu ofTiccra and cmployca, and any and all claims,
liabilities or penalties asserted tBeinsi the State, iu ofTicen

. artd employect, by or on behalf of.any person, on account of.
based or resulting from, arising out of (or which may be
claimed lo ariK out of) the acts or omissions of the
Contractor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
coniairKd ihall be deemed to corutituie a waiver of the

lovcreign immunity of the State, whkh immunity it hereby
fcscrved to the Sute. This covenant tn paragraph 13 shall
survive the terminatioo of this AgrcemcnI.

14. insurance.
14.1 The Controcior shall, at iu sole expense, obtain ond
maintain in force, and shall require any subconCracior or

. assignee to obtain and miinlain in force, (he following
insurance:

14.1.1 comprthensive general liability intunnee against all
claims of bodily injury, death or propc/ry damage, in a/nounu
of not leu than Sl.OOO.OOOperoccuntrve and $2,000,000
aggregate; arrd
14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all
property subject le tubparagriph 9.2 herein, in an amount no!
leu than 60V* of the whole replaeemeni value of the property.
14.2 The policica described insubparagraph 14,1 herein shall
be on policy forms and cndortcmcnis approved for use in the
Stale of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of
Insurance, and issued by'lnsurert licensed in the State of New
Hampshire.

3of4
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14.) The CoAtneior iheH funish lo (he Centnciing OfTicer
ideniirted in block 1.9. or hit or her niccosor. a ccnineeic^t)
of tflfurtnce Tor ell uuumncc required under thii Agrtcmeni.
Connctor ihtil etto riuniih lo the Conuiieiini OffKcr
identified in block 1.9, or hit or her tucteitor. ccfiirtctic(i} of
iruurenec for til renewalft) of insuronce itquired under this
Agreement no (tier ihtn (hinjr ()0) dtyt prior to the cipiniion
dtte of etch of the inturence policict. The eedificAicfi) of
iatufiBce end toy rcMuvls (hereof shall be Bttached end art
incorporated herein by itfercnce. Each ccnilieate(t) of
insurance thtll contain o clause requiring the insurer to
provide ihe Contnciing OrTicer idemined in block 1.9, or his '
or her itrceesior, no lets than ihiny (30) dsyi pn'or wrincn
noiict of ctaecUttion or modifiealton ofthe policy.

t5. WORKERS'COMPENSATION.
13.1 By cigning (his agreement, the Contractor agrees,
ccnifio and wrarranti (hat the Contractor is in compliinee with
or exempt from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281 -A
C'Work4rt'Co'nfitnjalien"J.
IS.i To the extent the Cont^tor is subject to the
requlrementi of N.H. RSA chapter 281 •A. Contnaor (hall
maintain, and rtquirr any lubconnactor or assignee to leeurc

'and maintain, payment of Workcn' Comperuailon in
conriection with eciivitiu which the pe'rton proposes to
unilcruke puriuaat to this Agreereeni. Conincior shall
himish ihc Cdntroeiini Orriccr ideniincd in block 1.9, or his

'Of her successor, proof of Wortea' Compensation in the
martner described In N.H. RSA chapter 281 -A and any
applicable rcnewal(i) thereof, which shall be anach^ and are
incorporated herein by reference. The State shall not be
responsible for payment of any Workcn' Compensation
premiums or for any ether claim or benefit for Contractor, or
any tt^nutcior or employee of Contractor, which might
arise under applicable State of New Hampshire Workers'
CompcBsaiion bwi in connection with the pcrforroancc of the
Services urtdcr this Agreement.

18. WAIVER OF BREACH. No foihire by Ihc State to
enforce any provisions hereof afler any Event of OefauU shall
be deemed e waiver of its rights with regard lo (hat Event of
Dcrauli. or any subsequent Cvmi of Default. No express
failure to enforce any Event of Default ahalt be ̂ cmcd a
waiver ofthe right ofthe Suie (o enforce each and all of the
proviiions hereof upon any funher or other Event of Default
on the part of the Coniracror.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by e parry hcreto to the other party
shall be deemed to hove been duly delivered or given at the
lime of rrailing by ccrtifrcd mail, postage prepaid, in a Uniicd
Suiei Post OfTtce addressed to ihc partiu at the addresses
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4. herein.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agrccrncni maybe amended,
waived or discharged only by an instrumem in wriiing signed
by the partiea hereto and only aflcr approval of such
amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and
' Executive CotJncll of the State of New Hampshire unless no

luch approval u requt/cd under the eircurrtstancu pursuant lo
State law. rule or policy.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF aCRCEMCNT AND TERMS.
This A^cemrni ihall be cottnrued in aecordaaee with the
laws of the Suie of New Hampshire, and it binding uppn and'
iivurci 10 the benefit of the panics and (heir retpcciive
auceeisen and asaigns. The wording uaed.in this Agreement
is the wording chosen by the paniti to express their mutual .
itttent, and no rtrle of eonsiructiort shall be applied tgainu or
in favor of any pany.

20. THiRO PARTIES. The paniu hereto do rtet intend to
bcrKTii any third panics and this Agreement shall net be
construed (0 confer any lueh bencni.

11. HEADINGS.. The headings ihroughotit (he Agreement
are for reference purposes only, and the words contained
therein shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or
-aid in (he inicipreiaiion, construction or meaningofthc
provisioru of this Agreement.

23. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. AtJdiiional provisiorts act
fo^ in the attached EXHIBIT C lu-c incorporated herein by
rtfcrcnce.

23. SEVEftAfilLtTV. In the event any ofihe provisions of
this Agrecmeni are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to
be contrary to any iiaic or federal law, the remaining
provisioru of this Agrtcmeni will remain in full foree and
effect.

24. ENTIRE agreement. This Agreement, which may
be executed in a number of eounterperis. cbch of which shall
be deemed an original, consiiiuica the eniire Agreement end
undersunding between the partia, and supersedes all prior'
Agreements and undersundings rtUiing hereto.

Page 4 of 4
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Suicide Hotline Services

Exhibit A

Scope of Services

1. Provisions Applicable to All Services

1.1. The Contractor shall submit a detailed description of the language assistance
services they, will provide to persons with limited English, profictericy to ensure
■moaningfut access to (heir programs and/or services within ten (10) days of the
contract effective date.

.  1.2. The Contractor shall participate in a kick-cfl meeting with the Department within
10 days of the contract effective date to review contract timelines, scope, and
deliverebles..

1.3. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future, state or federal legislation or
court orders may have en impact on the Services described herein, the
Department has the nghi to modify Service priorities end expenditure
reQuirements under this Agreement so as to achieve compliance therewith.

1.4. For the purposes of this Agreement, the Department has Identified the
Contractor as a Subrecipient, in accordance with 2 CFR 200.300.

2. Scope of Work
^ - 2.1. The Contractor shall provide suicide hotline services twenty-four (24) hours per

day, seven (7) days per week to respond to callers primarily located in New
Hampshire to attempt to prevent threatened suicides, do-escalate crises, and
provide callers with information and referrals relating to community services.

2.2. The Contractor shall provide suicide hotHne services in accordance with the-
Contractor's Network Agreement with the Mental Health Association of New
YofV City, Inc. whereas the Contractor participates as a crisis intervention center
.within the National Suicide Prevention Lifeline Networtt. funded through the
Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Adrhihistratibn (SAMHSA).

2.3. The Contractor shairmaintainiheir Networic Agreement in Section 2.2 above.
2.4. The Conlractor-shall mdintain their national accreditation as a suicide hotline

service and provide the Department with a copy of any renewal within five (5)
days .said certificalion-.

2.5. The Contractor shall ask the callers about suicidality and complete a suicide risk
assessment that incorporates the principles and svibcorripor^ents described in
the Network Agreement referenced In Section 2.2 above.

2.6. The Contractor shall engage callers and initiate all measures to secure the
safety of the callers for whom there Is information that a .suicide attempt has
already.been rhade, or at imminent risk of suicide using the practices of' } ;

.engagement described inlhe Network Agreement. '•

2.7. The. Contractor shall follow up with callers post crisis to ensure they are
connected to other services as applicable.
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2.8. The Contractor shall maintain written guidelines, policies, and procedures for
how staff shall respond to and assist callers determined by the Contractor to be
a danger to themselves or to others such as but not limited to:
2.6.1. How to conduct a lethality assessment of the applicable risk level;
2.8.2. Procedures applicable to the dispatch of rescue personnel, including,

without limitation, in those instances where a Caller refuses to
votunleer cooperation; and

2.8.3. Procedures applicable to follow-up with the Caller.
2.6. The Contractor shall answer calls within the National Suicide Prevention Llfelir\e

Network's timeframe standards of 'six (6) rings' before the call is routed to an
out of state call center at least seventy percent (70%) of the time.

2.10. the Contractor shall not:
2.10.1. Utilize an answering service or cellular telephones to answer Incoming

.  calls;

2.10.2. Utilize an automated attendant or any other system that requires a
caller to press a telephone key in order to be connected withXenter
Staff;-

'2.10.3. Forward incoming calls to a third party: and
2.10.4. Allow calls to be answered by a receptionist or iany Center Staff not

trained to assist Callers!
2.11. The Contractor shaP maintain written guidelines, policies, and procedures for

how to refer callers to communily services so that callers -are given an
appropriate array of options with respect to treatment, care and/or follbw«up;
options shall not be limited in any manner to organizetions, facilities or providers
affiliated with or related to the Center.

2.12. The Contractor shall maintain a call log anddocument the information when the
caller provides such information as: including but not limited to:

2.12.1. Date, time, and reason'for the call:
2.12.2. Age. gender, ethnicity, raca'and zip code or location or residence of

caller;

2.12.3. What prompted the call;
2.12.4. Caller's mental health/substance abuse treaiment history;
2.12.5. Caller's relationship to disasler.(i( any);
2.12.6. Number of referrals provided end where made the.referrals to;
2!i2.7. Whether the ceUer required emergency outreach services; and
2.12.8. To the extent applicable, the manner in which the caller leerned of the

suicide prevention lifeline.
2.13. The Contractor shall ensure proper staffing at all times.
2.14. The Contractor shall provide Ihe Department wth copies of their written policies

and procedures for providing the suicide hotline service, Including but not limited
to; , "

V, 2.14.1. Supervision and training requirements;
2.14.2. Code of ethics;
2.14.3. Grievance'process; and
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2.14.4. Quality Assurance and program evaluation.
2.15. The Contractor shall ensure that staff receive all necessary training (prior to their

responding to calls) in accordance with guidelines in Section 2.2.
2.16. The Contractor shall provide ongoing in-service training.for staff at Inten/als

deemed sufficient for ensuring continuous quality service.
2.17. The Contractor shall collaborate vvith the Department and other providers,

including but not limited to Granite United Way, which operates 211 in New
Hampshire, to educate communities and provide online end printed information
and resources for statewide distribution.

2.18. The Contractor shall attend the State's Emergency Service meetings as
requested.

3. Reporting

3.1. The Contractor shall report de-identified data outlined in Section 2.12 above on
.  8 monthly basis.

3:2. The Contractor shall report monthly the following number of:
3!2.1. Calls received:

3.2.2. The number of follows up contacts by the Contractor with the caller
post crisis;

3.2.3. Referrals and the reasons for (he referrals and for what type of service;
3.2.4. AnswWed calls loddlly in New Hampshire and the number of calls that •

were re-routed to another out of state call center; and

3.2.5. Outreach and education efforts with a description of what was done
and results, if it can be determined. ,

3.3. The Contractor shall provide:
3.3.1. For each submission, a copy of the.national suicide prevention report

for New Hampshire that is submitted to the National Suicide Prevention
Lifeline; and "

3.3.2. A copy of the Accreditation certificate within 10 days of the effective
date of this contract. ^

4. Performance h/Ieasures

4.1. The Corilrector's performance Shall be measured by the:
4.1.1. increased portion of calls answered in stale rather than re-routed to an

out of state cell center compared to last year;
4.1.2. Ir^creased number of follow-ups and commuriicalion with callers post

crisis compared to last year; and .
4.1.3. Increased community outreach and education of this service compared

to last year.

5. Maintenance of Fiscal Integrity

5.1. In order to enable the Department to evaluate the Contractor's Tiscal integrity,
the Contractor, agrees to submit to the Department monthly, the Balance Sheet,
Profft and Loss Statement, and Cash Flow Statement for the Contractor. The
Profit and Loss Statement shall Include a budget column allowing for budg^to
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actual analysis. Statements shad be submitted within thirty (30) calendar days
after each month end. The Contracior shall be evaluated on the following;'
5.1.1. Days of Cash on Hand;

5.1.1.1. Oermilion: The days of operating expenses that can be covered
by the unrestricted cash on hand.

5.1.1.2. Formula: Cash, cash equivalents and short term investments
divided by total operating expenditures. less
depreciationyamortization end in-kind plus principal payments on
debt divided by days in the reporting period. The short>term
investments as used above shall mature within three (3) months

and should not include common stock.
5.1.1.3. Perforrrance Standard: The Contractor shall have enough cash

and. cash equivalents to cover expenditures for a minimum of
thirty (30) calendar days with no variance allowed.

5.1.2. Current Ratio:

5.1.2.1. Definition: A measure of the Contractor's total curreint assets
available to cover the cx>s( of current liabilities.

5:1.2.2. Formula: Total current assets divided by total current liabilities.
5.1.2.3. Performance Standard: The Contractor shall maintain a

minimum current ratio of 1.5:1 with 1014 variance allowed.

5.1.3. Debt Service. Coverage Ratio:
5.1.3.1." Rationale: This ratio illustrates the Contractor's ability to cover

the cost of Its current portion ol its long-term debt.
5.1.3.2. Oermltlon; The ratio of Net Income to the year to dale debt

• service.

5.1.3.3. Formula: Net Income plus bcpreciaiion/AmortlMiion Expense
plus Interest Expense divided by year to dale debt service
(principal and interest) over the next twelve (12) months.

5.1.3.4. Source of Data: The Contractor's Monthly Flriancial Statements
identifying current portion of long-term debt payments (principal
and interest).

5.1.3.5. Performance Standard: The Contraclof shall maintain a
minimum standard of 1-2:1 with'no variance allowed.

5.1.4. Net Assets to Total Assets:
5.1.4.1. Rationale: This ratio is an indication of the Contractor's ability to

cover its liabilities. ,

5.1.4.2. Oefihltion: The ratio of the Conlrectors net assets to total
assets.

5.1.4.3. Formula: Net assets (total assets less total liabilities) divided by
total assets.

5.1.4.4. Source of Data: The Contractor's Monthly Financial Statements.
5.1.4.6. Performance Standard: The Contractor shall maintain a

minimum ratio of .30:1. with a 20% variance allowed.
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5.2. in order to enable the Deparlmentto evaluate the Contractor's fiscal integrity,
the Contractor agrees to submit to the Department monthly, the Balance Sheet,
the Profit end Loss statement for the month and yeaM^ate for the agency
and the Profit and Loss statement for the month and year-to-date for the
program being funded with this contract.

5.3. In the event that (he Contractor does not meet either:
5.3.1. The standard regarding Days of Cash on Hand and the standard

regarding Current Ratio for two (2) consecutive months; or
5.3.2. Three (3) or more of any of the Maintenance of Piscal Integrity

standards for three (3) consecutive months, then
5.3.3. The Department may require that the Contractor meet with Oepartrnent

staff to explain the reasons that the Contractor has not met the
standards.

5.3.4. The Department may require the Contractor to submit a
'comprehensive corrective action plan within thirty (30) calendar'days of
notification that 6.2.1 and/or 8.2.2 have not been met.

5.3.4.1. The Contractor shall update the corrective action plart at least
every thirty (30) calendar days until compliance is achieved.

5.3.4.2. The Contractor shall provide additional Information to assure
.  continued access to services as requested by the Department.

The Contractor shall provide requested information in a
timeframe agreed upOh by both parties.

5.4. The Contractor shall inform the Oepartrnent by phone and by email within
twenty-four (24) hours of wTien any key Contractor staff learn of any actual.or
likely litigation, Investigation, complaint, claim, or transaction thai may
reasonably be considered to have a material financial impact on and/or
materially impact or impair the ability of the Contractor, to peifonm under this
Agreement with the Department,

5.5. The monthly Balance Sheet, Prcftl & Loss Statements Cash Flow Statement,
and all other financial reports shall be based on the accrual method of
accounting and include the Contractor's total revenues and expenditures
whether or not generated by or resuHing from funds provided,pursuant to this'
Agreement. These reports are due within thirty (30) calendar days after the end
of each month.
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Method and Conditions Precedent to Pavmertt

1. The State shaU-pay the Contractor an amount not to exceed the Form P-37. Block 1.8.
Price Limitation for the services provided pursuant to Exhibit A. Scope of Services.

2. This Agreement is funded with State general funds.

2.1. The Contractor shall use the funding in accordance with Exhibit-A.. Scope of
Services. Sections 2.2.

3. Failure to meet the scope of services may jeopardize the funded Contractor's current
and/or fulurie funding.

4. The Contractor may submit a one time invoice for expenses incurred July 1. 2019
" through the dale Governor and Executive Council approve Ihis Agreement. The Invoice
must be submitted in accordance with the Deparimeni's instructions and as outline in
this Exhibit B. along with proof of "actual expenditures. '

5. Paymenl for said services shall be made monthly as follows;

S. 1. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures Incurred
in the futriiiment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with the approved
line Items as spedOed in Exhibit 6-1. Budgel and Exhibit 6-2, Budget. •

5.2. The Contractor shall submit an Invoice in a form provided by the Stale by the
t^ntielh. (20^) working day of each month, which Ideritlfies and requests
reimbursement for authorized expenses Incurred in the prior month.

5.3. The Contractor shall ensure the invoice is completed, signed, dated and returned
to the Department In order to initiate payment.

5.4. The State shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) days qf receipt
of each invoice, subsequent to approval of the submitted Invoice and if sufficient
funds are available..

6. The Conlraclor shall keep detailed records of their activities related to Oepartmenl.
funded programs and services and have records available for Department review, as
requested.

7. The Contractor shajl submit a profit end loss statement that coresponds to each monthly
invoice.

8. The final Invoice Shall be due to the Stale no later than forty (4G) days after the conJracI
completion date specified in Form P-37. General Provisions Block 1.7 Completion Date.
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9. In lieu of hard copies, all invoices may be assigned an eleclrohic signature and emailed
to Tanja.Godtfredsen^hhs.nh.gov, or invoices may be mailed to;

Financial Administrator i
Department of Health and Human Services
Division for Behavioral Health
tOS Pleasant Street

Concord. NM 03301

^  10. Payments may be withheld pending receipt of required reports or documentation as
Identified in Exhibit A, Scope of Services and in this Exhibit B..

11.NctMrithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that funding
under this agreement rnay be withheld, in v^ole or In part, in the event of nori-

. compliance with any Federal or State law, rule or regulation applicable to the services
provided, or if the said services or products have not been satisfactorily completed in
accordance with the terms and conditions of this agreement.

12.Notwithstanding paragraph 18 of the General Provisions P-37. changes limited to
adjusting amounts between budget line items, related iterns. amendments of related
budget exhibits within the price limitation, and to adjusting encumbrances between
State Fiscal Years, may be made by ̂ itten agreernent of both parties end may be
made without pbtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Council.
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. SPECIAL PgQVISIQMS

Contractore Obtigations: The Contractor covertants and agrees thai oD funds received by the Contractor
under the Corttred shall be used only as payment to the Contractor for services provided to eligible
individuals end. In Ihe fyrth^ence of the eforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby eover^ants and
agrees as foUowi:

'1: Compllence with Federal end State Laws: if ihe Contractor Is p;^lltod to determine (he efglbiUty
of ihdivlduols such oligibiOty determinoUbn shell be made in acoorder>c« with epplkabld federal end
elate laws, regutelions. orders, giridellrves. poSdes ertd procedures.

7. Time and Manner of Dotarmlnetlon: eligibility determinations shall be modo on forms provided by
Ihe Oopartmant for that purpose and shao be made and lemede ai such times as are prescribed by •
the Depertmem. . .

3. Documentation; in addition to the detorminaOon forms requiied by the Departmenl. llie Contractor
shaO maintain o data na on each recipicni of sarvcos horeurtdor. which filo shall Indudo oD ^ '
Informalion necessary lo support en eligibility determlnaiion and su.ch other information as ihe
Oepanmeni requests. Tho Contractor thrm fumdh the Oepartment with all forms end docurhaniation
regarding eligibility deiormlnotions thai the Oepanmeni may request or require.

4. Foir Heartnga: The Contractor urtderslands that ell epplicanit lor services hereunder. as v^l as
' bdivlduala declared ineligible have a right to s fair hearing regarding thai dslermtnalion. The '

Conirector het'eby covenants end agrees ihal all applicants for services shall be perniMed to tdl out
en application form and that each eppiiceni or re-applicant shall bO'Informed of his/her right to a fair
hearing In a'ccordance with Oepsrtmeni regulsibni.

5. Craluttlbs or'Klckbecka: Tho Conirector agrees thai it is a bre<^ of this ConiracI to accept or
make a payment, graluHy or offer of employment on behalf of the Contractor, ony Sub-Conlrpctor or

>. the Slate in order lo influence tha pertotmonce of (ho Scope of Worh detailed in Eihibil A of this
Conlraci. Tho Stolo may terminaie this Contract end any sub-coniraci or su^egreamenl If it is
determined ihel paymorus, gratuities ot offers of employment of eny kind were offered or received by
er>y officials, officeni. employees or agents of the Contractor or Sut^onireclor.

/

6. Retroactive Payments: Notwithst8ndir>9 anything to the conlrery cbrilained in the Coni/ocl or ineny
other document, contract or understanding, it b expressly understood arvj ogroed.by the pariio.s
hereto, that no payments will bo mada heroundor to reimburse iho Contractor for costs IrKurrod for
oriy purpose or for any services provided to any individual prior lo the Effective Dale of the Contract
and no payments shaQ be m'ada for oxpenses inourrod by the Contractor for ony services provided

.  prior (0 tho dele on wtiich Ihoindrvidual applies for services or (except as otherwise providod by the
federel regulations) prtor to o dotermirullon (hot tha indrvklual b eligible for such services.

7. Conditions of Purchase: Nolwlihtlending onythlng lo the controry contolnod in (he Controcl. nothing
herein conioined shell be deemed to obUgale or require the Oepartrneni to purchase services
horounder at a rala which reimburses the Contractor In oxcess of (ha Conlroclors costs, ot o rote '
which exceeds the amounts^reasonable or>d necessary to assure (he qualiiy of such service, or at a
rate which exceeds the rate charged by the Corttrsclor to Ineligble indivtduals or oihor third party
funders for such eorvico.- If of ony time during ih'o form of (his Conirecl or after receipt of tha Final
Expenditure Report heroundor. the Oeparimeni shell delenriine that the Contractor has used
payments hereunder to rolmburse Items-of expense other than such costs.'or has received paymeni
in excess of such costs or In oxcess of such rates charged by the Contractor to Ineligible individuals
or other third pariy fundors. (he Departmenl may elect to:

7.1. Ronegoti.oto.tho reles for payment hereunder. In which event new rales shall baeslablished;
7.2: Deduct from eny future payment lo ihe Contractor the on^unl of any prior rclmbursementin

excess of cosis:
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7.3. Demand repaymeni of the oicese paymeni by Ihe Conlrsclor in which ovont fa3ure to make
such repayment shaO constituie on Event ol Oefautl he/eunder. When the Controctor is

.  permitted to determine the oiigibOity of individusts for services, (he ContTBCtOf eigrees to
reimbureo (he Oopartment for ell funds p^ by the Departmeni to the CorUrector for sorvtces
provided to any Individual who is found by Ihe Oepertment to be tneEgible for such servicesei •
any lime dudng the period of retention of records esuibi/shed herein.

RECORDS: MAINtENANCE. RETENTION. AUDIT, DISaOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY:

6. Malnlenanco of Rocorda: In addHior^ to (he eligibility records specified ebove. the Contractor
covcrtervia end ogrees to maintain the foQowtng records during me Coniraci Period: '

8.1. Fiscal Records: books, records', documents and other data evidencing and refleciingolJcosts
end other expenses incurred by the Conirecior in the perfomnance ol the Contract, end eD
Income received or collected by the Contreclor during the Contract Pohod, said records to be
maintained In accordenco with accounting procedures ortd practices which suffldenOy and
property reftoci tdl such'costs end expenses, and which are ecceplabla to the Deparvncnt. ot^
to include, without Gmilation. oQ lodgers, books, records, and original evidence of costs su^ as
purchase requisitions end orders, voud^ers. requisitions tor meieriab. inventories, voluoiions of
in-kind contributions, labor time cards. pByroOs. end other records requested'or required by (he
Depanmenl.

■6.3. Statistical Records: Staibt'cal. enroitment, sRendenco or visit records (or each recipient of
servtces during the ConVacl Period. wNch records shaO In^de a!) records of application and
efigibQily (indudtng all forms required lo determine eiigi&iKty for each such recipient), rocords
rogarding (he provision of servlMS end. all invoices submined to the Oepanmeni to obtain
payment for such services. ^

6.3. Medical Records: Whore appropriate end es prescribed by (he Oepartmer^l regulations, the.
Contreclor shall retain medical records on each paiionUrecipiont of services.

9. Audit: Contractor shall submit an annual audit to the Oopartment within $0 days after the close ol the
■ egency ftscai year, it is recommended (hat (ho report be prepared in accordance with the provision ol

.  Office of Management end Budget Circular A-l 33. 'Audits of States, local Governments, end Non
Profit OrganUalions* ond the provisions of Standards for Audit of Governmental Organ'uetions.
Progroms, Activities ond Functions, issued by the US Gertera) Accounting Office (GAG standards) as
lhay'penain to flnandal compliance audits.

6.1. Audit end Review: Curing the term of this Contract end the period for roiontlon horaunder. the
Depanmenl. the United States Depanmenl of Health and Human Services, and any of their
dosignoted representatives shall have access to oil reports end rewds mainlainod pursuant lo
(he Corilroci for purposes of audit, examination, excerpts end transcripts.

9.2. Audit llabllriles: In eddiliort lo erxt not in any way in limitation of obligeliorts of (he Contract. It is '
understood and egr-eed by Ihe Contractor (hat the Contractor shafi be held liable for any stale
or federal eudh exceptions and shall return to the Depanmenl. oU paymerits made'under ihe
Contract to which exception has been (ekon or which have been disellowed because of such on
exception.

10. Confldentlollty of Records: All Intormalion. repods. and records maintained hereunder or collected
In connection wfih the portormance ol tho services and iho Controci shall bo confideniial end shaUnot
be disclosed by the Cont/pctor. provided however, that pursuant to state laws ond (ho regulations of
Ihe Department regarding the use ond disdosure ol such informellon. disclosure may be made to r
public officials requiring such (nformalion In cottnoctlon wllh their official duties end for purposes
directly connected to the administration of'lho'cervieps ertd tho Controci: end provided further, (hat
the use or disclosure by ony party of any Inlormalioh concerning e recipioni for any purpose not
direclly connected with the admin'istralio.r) of the Depanmenl or the Contrsclor's responsibilities with
rospoci to purchase.d services hereunder is proh'tblied except on wrinen consent of the recipient, his

•  attorney or guardian.
EztSdil C - Spedal Pfcvij'onj Contmdo* WUsi)
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NoNwdhsianding anything to the contrary coniaineO herein the covenenis end condilions coniained In
the Paragraph ehan survive the termlnolion of the Cof>troct for any reason wmolsoever.

11. Repcrts: Fiscal and Statistical: The Contractor agrees to submit the following reports ot ihefollowing
times if requested by the Depehmeni.'
11.1. Interim Finenclai Reports; written tntsfimnnano'ei reports oonteiningedeteiiDddoscriptionof

8D c^sls and nor>-8lk)wst>le expenses Incurred by the Contracio/ to the date of (he report end
containing such other informatioh. as shall ba deemed satisfactory by the Oepanment to
justify the rate of payment hereunder. Such Financial Rapons shall be submtned on tne form
designated by the Oepertmeni or deemed telisfeciory by the Oepartment.

11.2. Finsi.Repoh: A firul report shaO be submlned wUhin thirty (30) days after tno ond of the term
of this Contract. The Finel Report shall be In a form sotbfectory to (he-Oopaitment and shell
eomain e summary sietament of progress toward goals erul objectives slated in thePropdsoi
end other informeUon required by the Oepartment.

12. CoRipleUon of Services: Disallowance of Costs; Upon the purchase Oy the Department of the
maximum-number of units provided for In (he Contract and upon payment of the price rimliaUon'
hereunder, the Contract and en the obngeliom ol the parties hereunder (except such oblfgaUons as, ,
by the terms of the CorMract are (o be performed after the erKf of the term of this Contract end/or
curvlvo the larmfnallon of (he Contract) ehati lerminata. provided however, that If, upon review ofthe
Ftnal Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as-
costs hereunder the Oepartment shall retain the right, ai its discretion, to deduct the amount of such
expenses as are disoliowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

13. Credits: All documents, noUcos, press releases, research reports ond other maiertais prepared
during or resulting (ranri the performance of the services ol the Conirect shall indude ihefoDowIng
•statement;

13.1. The proparolion of this (report, documeni etc.) was financed under o Contract with (he Stele
of New Horhpshfre.'Oepartmeni of Health end Human Services, wtlh funds provided In pen
by ihe State of Now Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g., the united States Department of Health and Human Services.

14. Prior Appfoval arid Copyright Ownership: All materials (wrinen, video, audio) produced or
ptir^ased under the contrad shall have prior approval from OHMS before printing, production,
distribution or use.'The OHHS will retain copyrighl ownership for any end ell ongina) materials
produced. Incfuding, but not llmlled \b. brochures, resource directories, protocols or guidotinos,
posters, or reports. Conlractor shall not reproduce any materials produced undor (he contrad wilhoul
prior wrihen epproval from OHHS.

15. Operation of Facilities: Compliance wjth Laws and Rogulatlona: In the operation of any facilities
for providing aarvicas, the Conlrpdor ahaii comply with all laws, orders end regulations of federal,
stale, county ond municipal aulhorltlas ond with any direction of ony Public Officer or officers
pursuani to laws which shaD impose an order or duty upon Ihe contrador with r^pect to (ha
operation of the fecUity or Ihe provision of Ihe servlcos at SuCh facility. 11 any governmerMal license or
pormii shoD be requir^ for (ho operation of the said (acilily or tho performance of the said services,
the Cbntractor will procure said license or permli. and will at all times comply with tho terms and
conditions of each such licenae or permit, in connection with (he foregoing requirements, (he
Conlra'ctof horoby covenants ond agrees that, during the larm of this Cont/aci Ihe focilllios ehall
comply with all rules, ordara, regulations, and requiremonts of (ho Stato Of^ceof the Fire Marshal and
the tocol firq protection agency, and sftall be in conformarice with local building end zoning codes, by
laws and roguialions.

16. Equal.Employment Opporlunlty Plan (EEOP): The Contractor wlll.provlde on Equal Employment
Opportunity Plan (EEOP) (0 Ihq Offtce for CMl Rights. Offtce of Justice Progrems (OCR), (f it has

- received a single sward of S500.000 or more. If the recipient receives (25.000 or more and has 50 or

Exnr&ii C - Sp«ciaJ Provbtom Contr^ctw Milsb ^
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more employees. II wilhrneinlain e current EEO^ cr> file er^d sobmli an E£OP Certificelron Fom> to the
• OCR. cartifytng thai its EEQP is on nie. For rstipients receiving less than $25,000, or public grenteas
Mfth fewer than SO empioyeas. regardlass of ihe emouni of.the award; iha redpierti wiu provide an
EEQP Certification Form .to the OCR cenifylr^g n is not required to submit or maintain an EEOP. Non-

, proFil organizations. Indian Trfbes,' end medical snd educatiOAOl institutions ere eiempl from the
EEOP requirement, but ere required to submli a cartificaSon form to the OCR to claim the exemption.
EEOP'C^calion Forms are evallable at: http^/www.c^p.usdoifeboui/ocrfpdfs/ceri.pdf.

17. Umttod English Preflclency (LEPj: As cTarffise by Enscut/vc Order 13166. Improving Access lo
. Services for persons vwilh Limitod English PrefiDoncy. er«d resulting ogency guidance. naUenelertgin

dlscrlmlnaUon Includes discrimination on the betls of limited English preficiency (lEP). To oiuuro

compSance with the Omnibus Crirrie Control snd Sale Streets Act of t9$S and Tide VI of Ihe Civl)
Rights Act of 1964. Contractors musi take reasonable steps to ensure ihst LEP persons have
meaningful access lo Its programs.

18. Pilot Progrsm for Enhancement of Contractor Employee Whistlsblowor Protections; Tr>e
following shall apply to ell contracts that exceed the SimphTted Acquisiilon Threshold as defined in46
CFR 3.101 (cunrenlly. $150,000)

COrrTR/KCTOA EmPlOv£E WHlSTVeeLOWEn Rights AMO REOUat£M£NT TolNfOAM Empvoyees Of

WMJSTtEBLOWEft RiGxrs (SEP 2013)

(a) This contrsci and amployoos working on ihts coniraet vAl bo svb)oc( to the whlstieblowar rights
ond remedies in ihe piiot program on Contractor employee whisOeblower protections established at
41 U.S.C. 4712 by section 828 of the Nalional Oefense Aulhorizaiion Acl for Fiscal Year 20t3 (Pub. L.
112-239) and FAR 3.008.

(b) The Contractor shall Inform Its employoes In writing, in me predomlnani language of Ihe workforce,
of employee whlstiebiower rights and protections under 41 U.S.C. 4712. as described In section

■  3.906 of the Federal Acqurtition Regulation.

(c) The Contrector shall insert Ihe substance of (his clause. Including this paragraph (c). in all -
subconlracis over the simpl/fied acqu'aiiion thresh^.

19.- Subcontractors: OHHS recognizes that the Conlractor may choose to uso subconfractors wllh
greater expertise to perform certain health care services or functions for efnciency or' convenience,
but the Contrector ehd) rolain Iho rosponsibil'iiy end occountability for the functlon(9). Prior to
subcontracting, the Contractor shall evsluale Iho eubcontractor's abiSiy lo perform the delegated
function(6). This is eccompllshad through e wrUten agroemanl (hat spednes activilies'end reporting
responsibilities of Ihe subooniractor and provdos for revoking' the delegotiori or i.mposing senctions If '
(ho subeoniractor'o pertormanco is npl adequale. Sul>contreciors ere eubfecl to the some contractual
condil'tons as (he Contrector and Iho Contractor Is responsible to ensure subcontractor compliance
with those cor>dilions.

When (he Conirector dalegeles a function to e subcontractor, (ha Conuactor shall do the following:

19.1. Evaluate (he prospacDve subcontractor'sabiliiy to perform the aciiviiiet. before dolegeting
the function ■ .

19.2. Have 0 written agreomcnt with the subconirector (he! spocifios octivities andreporting
responslbiiilies end how sanctions/rovocation will be menogod if the subcontractor's
pertonrtance (s not adequale

19.3. Monitor the subcontractor's performance on on ongolrig basis

E*niStlC--Specl*lP«Ovii'OA3 Conlractcr Initiab ^
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19..4. Provide lo OHHS an annual schedule identifying all subconuactors. deiogated fundionsond
fesponsibililiea. and when the lubconlractor'a poffomnenee will bo rovlowod

19.S. OHHS Shan, at lla discraiioh. review and approve all subcontracts.

If the Contractor identiriea dertciencies or areas for improvement are identiried, (he Contractor shall
iako cdrroctivo action. -

20. Contract Oeflnttlona:

.20.1. COSTS; Shall mean those direcl and indirect items of espemedetermlnod by the Depanmeni
(o be aOowabfa and reimbursable in accordance with cost and accouniing principles established
in Bccordance w<in state artd federal laws, regulations, lutoa atSd ordere.

20.2.- DEPARTMENT: NH Department of Health end Human Services.

20.3. PROPOSAL: If oppflcabio. shell moan the document submitted by the Contractor on a
form or forms roguired by lha Department end contairung a description of the services and/or
goods to be provided by (he Cortlractor in occordance with tfie terms and conditions of (he
Contract and salting fohh the tola) cost srvd sources of rovonuo for each service to be provldod
under the Conimct.

20.4. UNIT; For each service that the Contractor Is to provide lo eligible individuals horoundar. shall
mean thai period of .lime or lhal speciried acti^iy detemtir^ by the Dopartmcmi end specified
in Exhibit B of the Centred.

20.5. - FEDERAL/STATE l^W: Wherever foderel or state laws, regulations, rulos. orders, and
policies, etc. are referred to in the Contract, the saki reference shsll bo deemed to moan

. aO such lews, regutailons. etc. as Ihey may be amended or revised from (ime (o lime.

20.6. -SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUND'S: Funds provldod-to the Contradbr under diis
Contract wiO not suppfont ony existing federal funds ovsUdblo for (hoso services.

EBxioii C - Se*da) Pfovcxtom Cont/ooo' Jnltiab ^ 70
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ReVfStONS TO STANOAftO CONTRACT LANOUAQE

'1. Revlalona to Form POT, General Proviaiona

1.1. SuDparagrapK 3. Section 3.1 of the Gano/a) Provisions of (his Conlracl. Effect^e
Oata/Compiation of Services is emended to read as foOows:
3.1 NolwIihsUinding any provision ot mis Agroemeni to ihe controry. end subject to the

approval of (he Governor and Execuitve CourKi of (he Stale of New Hampshire as
(ndicaied in btock 1.18. this Aorcomoni. and aD oUrofitions of the parties hereunder. shaft
become eheetive on July i. 2019 ('Effective Oaie').

'  1.2. Sedion 4. Condlitenal Nature of AQreempm. la reotacod as follows:

4. CQNDITtQNAL WATUHF OF AGPEEMPWT

NotwIlhstandinQ any provision of this Agreement to tho'eonirary. all obligations of (he State
horeurtdar. including without (imiloiion. the continuanca of payments, in whole or in part,
imder this Agreement are contingent upon continued appropriation or.avaaabiiity of funds,
Inchiding eny subsoQuent changes to (he appropriation or availflbQity bf funds affoctod by
eny slate or federal (agisiaiivo or executrva. actiOA (hat reduces, etiminalas. or olhaAvise
modlHas the appropriation or avaDabCiry of funding for {his Agreemom and (he Scope of
Services provided in Exhfbli A. Scope of Services, in whole or in pert In no event eheil the
Stale be liable for any payments hereurider in excess of epproprialed or avadabio fur>ds. In
(he event of e reduction, termination or modificalion ot opproprloied or ovaitabfe hmds. the
Stale shall hove the right to withhold payment unUl such funds become available, if aver. The
Stata ehaii have the right to roduco. tenmtnate or modify servlcas under this Agreomcnt
immediately upon giving (he Conbactor notica of such radudion. tarmlnatjon or modHlcatlon.
The State shaD no) be required to tmnsfar funds from any .olher source or account into the
A,ccounl(s) Identified in block 1.6 of Ihe Genora) Provisions. Account Number, or eny other
account In the even! funds are reduced or unavaflablo.

1.3. Section 10. Termination, is amended by adding (he following language;

10.1 Funds for (his contraa are eppropridlod to the Department and may ordy be used to fund a
NowHompshtro-based. naiionany-Dcc/odiied euicide hotline service as provided for In House
6iU 3 of (ho 20l9.Nqw Hampshire Poguiar Loglslotivs Session. Accordingiy. this egreement
will Immediately termlnaie lri the event the Contractor does not maintain (he required

i-r accrcditaiion.

10.2 Notwllhslonding Section 10. t above, the Sialo may terminate the AgroomenI at any tirnefor
eny reason, at the soie-drscrction of Ihe Sialo, 30 days etter giving the Contractor wrIRon
notice (hat tha State is exercising Its option to terminate the Agreement.

10.3 In (he avani ol early termination, ihe Contractor shall, wlihin IS days of rvotice of early
termination, develop and. submit to the Slate a Transition Plan for servlcos under (he

c- Agfoomoni. Including but not limtied to, idoniifylng the present end future needs of dlonte
racawing services under the Agreement and establishes a process to meet those needs.

10.4 The Conlrsctor shall fully cooperote with the Slate and sheD piomptiy provide deiaDod
intormation to support the Transition Plan (nduding. bui not limited lo, eny Informstion or data
requested by the Stata related to the termination of the Agreement end Transition Plan end
shall provide ongoing communicaiion and revisions of the Transition Plan to the Slate as
roquoslod.

2. Renewal '

2.1. The parties may extend the Agreement for up lo two (2) additional years from the Compleilon
Date, contingent upon saUsfactory delivery of services, available funding, egroement of tha
parUes and approval of the Governor end ExecuUve Council.
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DBUG^EE WORKPLACE REQUmeMEMTS

/

The Vendor. identiOod in Section t.3 of the Cenerel Provisions OQ/eet to comply with the proviiions of
Sections SlSl-Sl60oflhe Oruo-Free WoHtpIsceActof 1938 (Pub. L. 100^90, Tide v. Subtide 0; 4t
U.S.C. 701 el scQ.). and further egrees lo have the Cortiraaor's repreconlfllwe. es Identified ir) Sections
1.11 end l.l2of(heGoneralProvisiontexecutethefoDowingCertirication:

ALTERNATIVE 1-FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN mOIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES • CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION • CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE • CONTRACTORS

This certirrcetion Is re<]ui/ed ̂  Ihe regvlationa implementing Sections $i'si-5 ifiO or the Orvg-Ftve
Worhplaco'Acl of ISBSfPub.'l. 100490, Title V, Sublille 0; 4i U.S.C. 701 eiaeq.). The January 31.
1969 regulations Nvere emended end published es Pen II of iha May 25. 1990 Fcderol Rogistor (pages
21661 •21691), ond roguire certiriceiion by grenieas (end by Inference.' sub-greniees end sub>
oontroctbrs). prior lo a%vard. tftai ihey wID molnlain a dn^g-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c} of the
regutalion provides ihei a grantee (end by inference. 8ut>^grsniees and.sub-coniractora) that Is e Slate
may elect lo make one cartlficatjon to the Oopanmeni in each federal nscaryoer in lieu of eentflcetes for
each grant during (ha fodorpi fiscal year coverod by the cenificalion. The certificate set out below is a
tnaieria) representation of fact upon which reliance Is placed when the agency owards the.grant. False
carbTication or violailon of the caniTicalion shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
temtlnailon of grants, or government wide suspension or dobarmeni ConiraclDra using tNs form should
send il to:

Commissioner

NH Depertment of Health end Human Services
129 Pieesant Street. ^

.  Concord. NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee cenines that it win or win coruinue to provide a ,d^-free v^tVpiace by:
1.1. Publishing a statement rxtifyi'ngemployees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,

dispensir>g. possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee's
wo^piaca and specifying the actions thot wtij be (alien against employiaos for viotailon of such
prol^ilion:

1.2. Esiablishtng en ongoirtg drug-free ewaroness program to Inform employees about
1.2.1. Tho'dangers of drug abuse In Ihs workplaco;
1.2.2. The gronloo's policy of maintaining 0 drug-froo workploco:
1.2.i Any ava.Bablo dmg coun8eIif>g. rehobllitolion. and employee essisletice progrems; end
1.2.4. . The penalties that may be Imposed upon employees (or drug abuse violations

occurring in the vvorkplace: '.
1.3. Making It e requiremem that each em^oyee to be engaged In the pe,rformanca of the grant be

given a' copy of Iho stalomcnt required by paragraph (a);.
t.4. Notifying (he employee In the stalement required by poregreph (a) thot. os e condition of

employment under the grant, the employee wiO
1.4.1. Ab'xfe by the lerms of (he sletemani; end
1.4.2. Notify Ihe emplpybr in wriling of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug

statute occurring in the workplace rvo leler'lhon five calendar days ofior such
convlclion;

1.5. Notifying the agency in writing, wfthfn ten calendar days after receiving notice under
■  .subparegreph 1.4,2 from an employee or otherwise receiving oclual nollco of such conviction.

Employers of convicted employees musi provide rwUco. Including position title, to ovary grant
officer on whose grpni activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Foderol agency

6mwiO-C«nintrJonreganI!neO»wflFtoi vtrvrot iiuttaii
Wortt(rac*R»9iJiBmonU / * /^.
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hbs deslgnoied e cenusi point for the receipt of such r\oticer Notice shoO Indude (he ,
IdeniUlcotlon numt>er(8) ot eecti affected grant;

1.6. ToXir^g one of the following aciiorts. within 30 calendar days of recaivlrtg notice under
aubparegraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employea who is so convlctad
t.6,.1. Talcing appropriate personnel ectbn egaintf such en.emptoyce. up to and including

termination, consistent with ihe requtrements of iho RehabPiiation Act of 1973. es
amonded: or

1.6.2. Raquirlng such empfoyea to panicipate eaiisfectordy In e drug abuse assistance or
rehabOiutlen program epproveO for such purposes by e Federal. Slate, or local heoKh.
law enforcement, or other appropriate agercy:

1.7. Making e'good faith eflort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
Implementationof paragraphs 1.1.1.2.1.3. 1.4.1.5. end 1.6.

2. The grantee may Inseh in ihe space provided below the si(e<s) for the performance of work done in ;
corviection with Ihe tpeciAe grant.

Place of Performance (street address, dty. county, stalo. zip code) (list each location)

/^/ sr.

Chech □ If there are workplaces on Ttle that ore not identified here;

Vender Neme;

//j/jOJO
^ ki-irr." ^ 3Date Name:

EMbll 0 - CtrUTcjlSon rvgA^ifing Orvg Froe Vendor lAlUsh CSr
wotpso#Rogulrcmflnu . . /^/o30
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CERTIFICATION REQAROING LOBBYING

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 ol the General Proviaiona agrees lo comply with the provisions of
Section 3l9of Public t^ 101-121, Govemmeni wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, ond
31 U.S.C. 1352. end funher egrees to have ihe Contrecior's representolive. os Identified in Sa^ns 1.11
and 1.12 of the Geneiel Provisions cxecuto the following Cenrfcalion:

US department of health AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION • CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE • CONTRACTORS

Programs (indlcete applicable progrem covered):
'Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under TiUe iV-A ■
'Child Support-Enforcement Progrem under TiOe IV-O
'Social Ser^ces Bioch Groni Program under Tide XX
'MecDcaid Progrerh under Title XiX
'Community Services BlKk Grant under Ti.tlo Vi
'Child Cere Development Btoch Grant under Tide iv

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge ervl trelief. Ihei:

1. No Federal epp/oprfsied funds have been paid or will be peid by or on behalf of the underslgr>ed, lo
ony person for irtfluencing or attempling lo irvfluence en officer or employee of eny agency, a Member
of Congress, en officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Cot>gross In
connection with Ihe awarding of ony Federal contract, cenlhuaiicm. renewal, eme^meht, or
modification of eny Federal conirect. granl, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
sub-greniee or sub-conlraclor).

2. II ony funds olhor than Federal opproprlaied funds have teen paid or wfli be paid to eny person for
infiuencing or enempiing to Influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congrosa.
en officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this •
Federal contraci. grant, loen, or coo;<rotive egreement (end by specific mention sub^Fsniec or sub
contractor). the urxforsignod shafi complolo ar>d submit Standard .Form LIL. (DisdoSuroForrh to
Report Lobbying, In ecoordsnce with Its Instructions, attached and Ideniifiod es Standard Exhibii £-1.)

3. The urvjerslgnod shell rogulro that the lenguege ol this certification be Inciudod in thg award
document for sub-owards ol ell tiers (including subcont/acts. sub-gronts. end contracts under grants.'
(oans. end cooporetlvo ogroomonts) ond that oii eub-redpients shoU certify end dlsdoso occordingly.

This cortificeUon is e motorisi representelion of fed upon which reliance wes pieced when this ironsection
was mode or onlored into. Submission of this cerlificetlon Is o proteouisiie for moking or ontenr>g into this
uonsecHon imposed by Section 1352. Tiilo 31. U.S. Code. Any person who faiis to file the required •
certification shall be subject to a cM) penalty of not less Iher^ S 10.000 end rtoi more than S 100.000 for
each such failure.

VendorName: /AyC.

Oale Name:

Etfiltii C - CwUScsSon RegArtkng LoOOytng Vindor MlUe.

cuoMVivsro Popi 1 o< i Dais
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CERTIFtCATlON REQAROING DEBAftMENT. SUSPCNSION

■ AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY WAITERS

The Vendor identifled In Sectioo 1.3 of the General Provtsior^s agrees to cornpTy ttHin (he provisions of
Executive OfAce of the Preslden}. Executive Order t2S49 and 4S CFR Pan 7$ regarding Debarment.
Suspension, and Other Reiponsibiiity Metiers, end further egrees lo have the Contmctor'a
ropfosentative. ee'idaniifiad In S^ons i.it ervl i.i2of the General Provisions execute the foQowing
Cortificatiorv

(WSTRUCTI0N9 FOR CERTIFICATION.

1. By olgrting end submitting ihb proposal {conoacl). the prospective primary penlcipanl Is provfdir>g the
certiflcaiion eot out below.

2. The inabllitv of a pe^on to provide the cerorcation required below wiii rtoi r\eces8arDy result in denial
of partidpairon in (his covered Uansoelion. If necessary, the prospective perticipeni shall eubmil en
explanatlor> of why it cannot provide the certricalion. The certificallon or expl8r>Biion win be
considered in connection wllh the NH Depanmertt of Heallh end Human Services' (OHHS)
determlniUon whether to enter into this Imnsaction. However, feiure of (ho prospective pdmory
pertidpartt to fumlsh e certircalicn or an oxpanation shall disqualify such person from pertldpetion In
this Irartsacllon. '

3. The certificaUon In this dsuse Is a material representation of fact upon which reiiar>ca was placad
when DHHS doterimlned to enter into this transaction. It it Is bier detenmined Ihel the prospecDve'
primary partJdpant knowfngly rendered an erroneous ceniTicalion. in addition to oiher remedies
avaiiabie to (he Federal Government, OHHS may (ermir^aie (his iransacUon for cause or default.

4. The prospocUve primary par^panl shsD provids InvnodialQ written notice to the DHHS i^oncy to
whom this proposal (conlrsd) is submined If al eny time the prospective primary penldpant (earns
that its cer^icalion wes'erroneous when submiited or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circixT>siances.

5. The terms 'covered traniectlon.* 'debarred.* 'euspendod.' 'Ineligible.* 'lower tier covered
transaction.' 'parlidpenl." 'person.' 'primary covered ifanseclion,* 'prlndpal.' "proposal." and
'votunbrUy exduded.' as used ihlhls dause. have the meanings set out in (he Oermliions and
Coverage sections of the rules implomonilng Executive Order 12S49:45 CFR Part 76. See the
atbched deftnitions.

6. Tho prospocUve primary'participant agrees by submlning this proposal (coni/acl) thai, should (he
proposed covered Iransoction be entered into, (1 shall not knowingly enlor Into any lower tier covered
transaction'with a pereon who is debarred, suspended, decfarodjnellgible. or volonbrily exdudod
from parlicipalion in th'is covered IransacUon, unless auihorized by DHHS.

7. . /Tha.prospoctlve prtmary panidpant further ogress by submlning this proposal (hot itwlD mdude tho
'  clause tilled 'Certirication Regarding Debarmonl. Suspension, Inoligibllity emd Votuniaiy Excfuslon •

Lower Tier Covered TransecUons." providad by OHHS. without modiricoUon. in all lower tier covered
Irensections and In aD soUcllotions for lower tier covered tronsections.-

8. A partidpenl in a covered transaction may rely upon o certilicalion'of a prospecltve partcdpenl in a
lower lier covered transaciion that it Is not debarad, suspended. Irreligible, or Involuntsrily excluded
from the covered iransoction, unless it knows thai the coriificalion is erroneous. A partidperri mey
decide tho method end froquency by which li deiermlneS'tna eiigioilliy of its prlndpels. Eech
participant may, but is not required to. check IheNonprDcurement List (ol exduded parties).

9. Nothing cor>l8lned In (he fomgoing shall be constAJOd to requlro oslablishmcml ol o system of records
in order to render In good faith the cerliricailor) required by (his dause. The knowledge end -

F - C«n]ne«Don RagirUlno OtUrniOAl, SmpenPon Vandar InlUab
And Otho'ftoiporaloCTiy MxnofT
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intormelion of e particfpani ii not required 10 exoeed (hal which is normoOy possessed by a prudeni
pofton in {ho ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for (ranseciions authoMzed ur^er paragraph 6 of lhasa instrucUons. if a pardcipent in a
covered transaction knowtngly enters inio a lower tier covered transaction wiih a person who H
Buspended. dobanrad. IneQ^ble. or voluntarily ascludod from perdcipaUon In this t;8r\S8Ctjon, in
addition to other ramadies dvoilabia lo'the Fedaral govammanl. DHHSmay termmaia this transaction
for causa or defeuft.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS
11. The prospecdva piimory pmrddpont conillos lo tho bosi ol Its knoMedgo and belief, that It arid Its

pdnelpsis:
11.1. are not prasendy debarred, suspended, proposed lor daberment.dedared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal depenmeni or agency.
11.2. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had

a civd judgment rendered against thsm.ror commission of fraud or o criminai offense in
connection with obtaining, attempting lo obtain, or performing e public (Federal, Slate or local)

. transaction or a ooniract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust
siatuias or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, making falsa stslemenls. or rocaiving stolen property:

11.3. are not presently Indicted for olherwisa cdminaliy or civfiiy charged by a govemmentAl oniily
(Federal. Stolo or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated In paragraph (l)(b)
. of thiseartincalion; and

11.4. have not wfihin o three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal. Slate or local) termirtaied for cause or default.

12. Where tho prospective primary partlcipenl Is unable lo certify lo any of tho staloments in this
certlficalion, such prospective participant ahaO attach on explanation lo this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS

13. 6y signing and submining this lower tier proposal (conlracl). tho prospoctlvo lower tier participant, as
dofined in 45 CFR Pah 76. ceiiifies lo the bosi of iis knowledge 'and belief that II end its prtf>cipals:

■ 13.1. -ere nol presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debermenl, declared inoiigibla. or
voluntarily exduded from partidpalion in this l/ensac(ion by any fedora) department pr agency.

13.2. where (he prospective lower .tier pertldpani Is unable to certify to any of Ihe above, auch
prospective pa/tlclpanl shall enach an expfanatlon to this proposal (coniraci).

Id. The prospe^ve lower tier particlpani further agrees by submitting this proposal (conlracl) that It will
Include this douse enUiled 'Certification Regarding Debarmeni. Suspension. ineliglbDity..or>d
Volunlary Exclusion • Lower Tier Covered Transactions.* without modiflcadon In ell lower Her covered
ironsocitons and In ell solicitations for lower liar covered transactions.

Vendor Name. ( h)C.

//sAos>o
OalT^ . Name: 'y

EtfiaaP-C««UflcoOOA Ropsnang D«a*rmar«.Suxpvnston Vandor twaUli
And Other RwpwiJQflltyMxnoa
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CEHTIPICATION OP COMPLIANCE WTTH REQUWEMEHTS PERTAiNINQ TO ,

FEDEftAl. NONDlSCRIMWATtON. EQUAL TREATMENT OF f AiTH^ASEO ORGANIZATIOHS AND
WHISTLEetQWER PROTECTIONS

The Vendor identified in Se^on 1.3 of the (^ersl Provisions agrees by signature oJ the Contractor'^s
ropresenUtive es Identllied in Sbctibrn i.ti end t.izorthe General Provisions, loeiecutethefoTlowing
certlficalion: .. ' -

Vendor wOl oempty, and wCl require any tubgmnleoa or suboonlractore lo comply, «4in eny eppUcsble
federdi nondlscrimlnailon requirements, which may Inctuda:

• the Omnibus Crime Conlrgl end Safe Streets Act ol 1966 (42 U.S-C. Section 3769d) which prohibits
rodpienls of fedeml funding under tNs statute from discriminating, either in employmeni prsctJcoi or In
lha daitvery ct services or benefits, on the bests d race, color, religion, neiiono) origin, ond aes. The Aei
requires certairt redptents lo produce en Equal Emptoyrnent Opportunity Plan; •

• the Juvenile Justica Delinquency Proverulon Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section S672(b)) which eoopts by
refarenco. the cMi rights ob&gations ot the Ssfo Streets Act. Recipients of foderai funding under this
ctatute are prohibitod.from dtscrtmineUng. oither In omploymant pracilcas or in tna delivery of eervicas or
benefits, on the basis of race, cotor, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equa)
En^ptoymeni Opportunity Plan requirements;

. the Civ9 Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d. vrhicK prohibits recipients of federal (insnciel
osslstancefrom discrtminBling oh the basis of raca. color, or r>sl]onai origin In any.program or ectivtiy);

• the Rehabiliielion Act ot 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794). which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assistence from discriminating on the basis of disabiity. in regsrd to emptojmtont and the deUvary of
eervices or bonofits. In any program or ecihrity;

• tho Amortcans with Obaonitlos Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sociloris-12t31-34), which prohibits
discriminalion eruJ ensures oqual opportunity (or persons with disabOilles in employment. State end local
govommont cervices, public accommodations, commercial faciiitias. and transportation;

• the Education Amendmentfi ot 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections t681. 1683.16SS-36). which prohibits
discrimination on the basis ol sex in federally assisted education programs;

• the Age Oiscdminetion Acl of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07). which prohlbiis disCftminelion on (he
' bads of ege.in programs or eciiviiies receiving Federal financial assistance. Ii does not include
ompioymeni discrtntnajlon:

- 26 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Oopartmeni of Justko Regulations - OJJOP Grant Programs): 26 C.F.R. pi. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Hondiscrtminallon; Equal Employment Oppc^unlty; Pollcios
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (oqual protection of the tawa for (aiih-basod ond community
orgenizoTions): Exocuttva Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental pHnciplos and policy-meklng
criteria for partnerships with (ellh-bssed end noighborhood organizations:

- 26 C.F.R. pi. 36 (U.S. Department of Justice Regutaiions - Equal Treatmant for Faith-Based
Organlullom); and Whtsdeblowar protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 qnd Tho National Oofanse Authorizotlon
Acl (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239. enacted Jaituary 2. 2013} the Pilot Progrem for
Enhancement of Contract Employee WhisUobiowar Protections, which protects employees ooalncl
reprisal for certain whisdo blowing activities in connection with federal grants ond contracts.

The certificate sal out below Is e material rapreseniaiion of fact upon which reliance Is piacod when the
agency awards the grant. Folso coriificaiion or violation of the certification shot) be grounds for
suspension of paymanis. suspension or termination ol grants, or govommont wide suspension or
dobarmonl.

C  < iV
• VeneoriftBtta Ci l ̂  '

ini/M
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In the evcni a Federal or ̂ te couit,or Federal or Stale edmtnrslrative egency makes 6 finding of
discrfnitnation after a due process hearlrig on the grounds of race, color, retlglon. national origin, or sei
against a recipient of funds, the recipient wQI forward a copy of Ihe finding to the OfTrce for Civil Rights, to
the 8|)piicable contracting egency or dKnsicn within the Oepartmenl of Heolth and Human Services, and
to the Oepartmenl of Health and Human Services Oftce of the Ombudsman.

The Vendor tdenilfled in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contncto/'e
ropresentalive as tdentlfled In Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the Cenerol Provblons. to execute the foibwlno
certification:

i. 6y eigning end eubn^ttirtg this'proposal fconlrtd) the Vendor egrees to comply with the provisions
indicated above.

Dale

Vendor N.n»:

/VName:

Mm*

ceiikOC

P«M2el2

Ver<do> Inhlals

Del*
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CERTIPICATION H6QARPINQ EWVtRONMEMTAL TOBACCO SW0K6

Public Law 103'227. Part C • Envlrofvnenial Tobacco Smoka. also known aj pie Pro-ChMmn Ad of 1994
(Ad), requiree that irndttng not be pennlitcd In any portion of any indoof tadhty owned Of leased or
contmdad for by en entity and used routinely or rogularty for the provlston of heaRh. cay cere, education,
or library sa/vlcas to cNldren under the age of 10, if the servicas are funded by Federal programs .either
direcOy or through State or tocoi govemmenb, by Federal grenl, ooritrad, loan, or loan guarantee. The
lew dcee not epply to chOdrort'e fervices provided In private residences, facilities funded solely by'
Medicare or Med'caid funds, end portions of facakits used for inpaUent drug or elcohd ireatmant. Failure
to oompty with the provisions of the tow may resUt In the imposition of o Civil monetary penalty of up to
$1000 per day ond/or the IntposlUori of an adminlrtralivo eompl'ianca order on the responsible anttty.

The Vendor Identified In Section t.3 of dte.General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Cdniro'ctOf'e .
represaniativeosldeniifcedinSeclcn l.il and i.l2ofthe General Provisions, to execute,the loflowtng
certiricalion:

1. By signhg end subrrtning this conirect. the Vendor ogroes to make rcwonoblo effort# to comply wilh -
'aD appUcablo provbions of Public Lew 103-227, Port C. known as Ihe Pro-ChiWron Ad of 1994.

VendorNamo: ̂ ekozn'sr

J/Jo^O
Date Name:

EUitWJ H - CenlftMfion nog#rtV\B Ver^doi InWab.
EnvVorvnenulTobeecoSmoks , /y /n.
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HEALTH INSURANCE PORTASILCTV AND ACCOUNTABiUTY ACT
BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor idenlifi^ in S^ion 1.3 of the General Provtsio.ns of the AQreernent agrees to
compfy with the Health Insurenco Poitabiiity and Acoountabtlity Act. Public Law t64>191 and
with the Standardi'for Privacy and Securl.ty of individually Identifiable Health Information. 45
CPR Parts 160 end 164 appii.cabte to business essodales. As defined herein, 'Business
Associate* shall mean the Contractor and subeontreeto/s er>d eoenis of the Contractor that
recelva. use or have eccess to protected health Information under this Agreement end 'Covered
Entity' shall mean the Stale of New Kampshire. Oepertment of Heatth end Human Services.

(1) PrnnH'o""-

a. 'Breach* shall have the same meaning as the term 'Broach' in section 1^.402 of Title 45.
Code of Federal Regulations. j

b. 'Business Associate' has the meenlng given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45. Code
of Federal Regulations.

c. 'Covered Entity' has the meaning given such term In eecllon 160.103 of TiOe 45.
Code of Fedaral'Regulalions.

d.' 'Qastonaied Record Set'shati have ihe same meaning as the tenn 'designated record set'
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

e. 'pata AQoreoetion' shell have the same meaning as the term 'data aggregation' in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

f. 'Health Care Qoeraltons' shall have the same meaning es the term 'health care operations*
in 45 CFR Section 164.601.

I

g. 'HITECH Act' means the Health Information Technology for Economic end'Ciinical Healih
Act, TiUeXII). Subtitle 0. Part 1 & '2 of (he American Recovery and Reinvestment A^ of
2009.

'HIPAA' means (he Health insurance P.onability and Accountability Act of 1936, Public Law
104-191 and the Standards.for Privacy end Security of individually Identiriabte Heai^
Information. 45 Perls 160.162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

I.' 'Individual' shall havo the same meaning es (he term 'indivtduer in 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall indudo a person who qualiries as a perso.nal representative in eccordanco with 45
CFR Section 184.'501(gl. ^

). 'Pflvaev Rule' shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identiriabte Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164. promulgated under HIPAA by the United Stales
Depertmenl of Healih end Human Services.

k. 'Protecled hBalth Informaiion' shall have the same moaning as the term 'protected health
Information' In 45 CFR Section 160.103,.lirruied to the informetion created or received by
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity.
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I. 'Refluirfld bv Law' Shall have (he sarne meaning as (he term "required by laW In 45 CFR
Section 164.103.

m. 'Secretafv* shall moan the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or
his/her designee.

n. -Sacurinf Rule" sheU moan the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Heelth Information at 4S CFR Part 164; Subpart C, and amendments thereto.

0. "Unsecured Protected HeaUh Information' means protected health information that Is rtOt
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable,
unreadabla. or Indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and Is developed or endorsefl.by
B standards developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute. , . 1 ;

p  (Jther Deftnitions • All terms not oihenvlse defined herein shaD have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160. 162 and 164. as amended from time to time, and the
HITECH

• Act.

(2) Bualneea AeeoclBle Use and Dtacloeura of Protected Heatth Information.

8. Business Associate shell not use. disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services ouUlned under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further. Business Associate, including but not limited to ell
Its director, officers, ernployees and egonts. shall not use. disclose, mamtaln or transmit -
PHI in any manner that would consUtule a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

b. Business Ass<*i8te may use or disclose PHI:
I. For the proper management end adminisiration ol the Business Associate:

.  II. As required by law. pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
II). For data aggregation purposes for the health care cperelions of Covered

Entity. ■

c. To the extent Business Associate Is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party. Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i)
reasonable essumnces from the third party that such PHI will be held conWeMlBlly and
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for.the purpose for which It .was.
disclosed to the third party; end (ii) an agreement from such third party to notify Business
Associate, In eccordence with the HlPAA Privacy. Security, and Breach Notiricailon
Rules of eny breaches of the confrdentialily of the PHI., to ihc cxioni It has obtained
Knowledge of such breach.

d. The Business Associate shall nol, unless such disctosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a
request for disclosure of» the basis thai It is required by law. without first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity lo object to the disclosure and
to seek appropriate relief, if Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Business
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/
Associate shall refrain from disclosing (be PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all.
remedies.

e. II the Covered Entity notifies the Businass Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by edditionai restrictions over end above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
ShaD be bound by such edditionai restrictions and shati not disclose PHI in violation of
such eddiUona) rosthctions er^ shall etide by any additional security safeguards.

(3) Obtlqatlona and ActlvltleB of Bualnees Aeaoclate. '

a. The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer immediaiety
after the Business Associate becorhes eware of any use or disclosure of protected
heaUh Infomnation rtot provided for by the Agreement including breaches ol unsecuriad
protected health information and/or any security Incident that may have an impact on the
protected health information of the Covered Entity.

b. The Business Associate shall immediataly perform e risk assessment when it becomes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall Include, but not be
limited to:

o The nature end extent of the protected health information Involved, including the
types of idenlifiers and the likelihood of re-ideniification;

0  The unauthorized person used the protecied health informaiton or to whom the
disclosure was made;

• o' Whether the protected health intormeiion was actually acquired or viewed
0  The extent to which the risk to the protected health Informaiion has been

mitigated.

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessmeni within 46 hours of the
breach and immediatety report the findings of the risk assessmeni In writing to the
Covered Entity.

c. The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy, Security, and
, Breach Notification Rule.

d. Busine~sfi Associate shall make dvallabio all of its internal policies end procedures, books
end records relating to the use arxJ disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associiale on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for '
purposes of determining Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy end
Security Rule.

e. Business Associate shail require alt of its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHi ur>der the Agreement, to agree In writing to adhoro to tho same
rest/lctions end conditions on the use and disclosure of PHi contained herein. Including

. the duty to return or destroy the PHI as pfovtded unde'r Section 3 (I). Tho Covered Entity
shall be consldorod e direct third party beneficiary of (he Contractor's business associate
agreements with Contractor's intended business associates, who wiii^be receiving PHI

CtNtni Ccntrpgy l«)Ual> Cj^l"
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pursuant to this Agreamenl. with rights ot entorcameni arxl irxlemnification from such
business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph 013 of the stendard
contract provisions (P*37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use ar^ disciosure of
protected health information.

f. Within five (5) t>usiness days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity.
Business Associate shall maXe evaiiaOto during normal business hours at its offices all
records, books, egreemenla. policies end procedures relating to the use ond disciosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of qnabilng Covered Entity to deteimine
Business Associoto's compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

g. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity. .
Business Ass^ate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual In order to meet the
requirentenls under 45 CFR Section 164.524. '

h. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for en
. emeridment of PHI or a record about an individual ccnlained.in a Oaslgr^ated Record
Set. the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity^for
emendmcni and Incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its
obligations under 45 CFR Seclton 164.526.

I. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI ar>d inlormation relat^^io
such disclosures es would be required lor Covered Enlity to resporuj to a reouestby en
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI to accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528.

j. Within ten (10) business days of rocoiviog a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for en accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Enlity such Information as Covered Enti^ may require to fulfill its obligations
to provide on accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in .accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

k. In the event any Individual requests access to,, amendment of, or eccountlng of PHI
directly; from (he Business Associeie, the Business Associate shall wittiin two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Enlity she'i have the

. responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However. If forwarding the
;  individual's request to Covered Enlity would cause Covered Enlily or the Business

Assr^ete to vioiste HlPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business-Associate
shall Instead respond to the Individual's request as required by such law.and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

I. Wilhir^ ton (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity. ali-PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the
Agreement, and shall not retain e'ny copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or
destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in
the Agreement. Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of'ihe
AgtaBmenl..t6 such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to those
purposes that make the return or deslofction infeasible, for so fong as Business
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Associate maintains such PHI. if CovBreO Entity. In it? sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or aD PHI. the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Emily that the PHI has been dBstroyed.

(4) Qblicationa of Covered Entity

8. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any chanfles or Iimita0on{8) in lu
NoUca of Prtvocy Praclicos provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.520. to the esient that such chai^ge or limitatw may effed Business Associate s
use or disclosure of PHI.

b. CovBffld Enlity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes In. or rovccation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHi may be used or
disclosed by Busirtess Assodate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section .
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

c  toverod entity shall prompUy notify Business Associate of any restrictions on ihe use or
disclosure o! PHI thai Covered Entity has agreed to in eccordance wiih 45 CFR 164.522.
to the ojrtont that such rosWction may affect Business Associate s use or disclosure of .
PHI.

(5) Termination for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may Immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity's knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of Uio Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either immediately
terminate the Agreement or provide en'opportunily for Business Associate to core the -
Dlieoed breach within a timaframe specified by Covered Emily. If Covered Enlity
detefmines ihat neither termination nor cure is feasible. Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary.

(6) MlecellanoouB

a- fi#>f.nii.ftns and Rnnuiainrv References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein
Shall have the seme meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Secunly Rule, emended
from lime to lime. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit I. to
a Section if) the Privacy end Security Rule means the SecHon as in effact or as
amended.

\

b  Amehdmeni. Covered Entity and Bus'mess Associelo agree to take such action as is
necessary to emend the Agreement, from lime to lime as Is necessary for Covered
Enlity to comply with the changes in the requirements of HIPAA. the Privacy and
Sacuflty Rule, and applicable federal and stale law.

C. Data Ownerahip. The Business Associate ecknowladgos that il has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Enlity.

d  ■ Inlerpretalion. The parties agree thai any ambiguity in the Agroemenl shall be resolved
to permit Covered Entity to comply wilh HIPAA. ihe Privacy end Security Rule,

HMllMmwOnM Po'VfbCty AO
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SocroQfliten. If any term or condition of this Exhibit I or the application thereof to any
pcrson(8j or circumstance is held invalid, such invBlidlly shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the Invalid term or corxlition; to this end (he
terms and conditions of this Exhibit I are declared severable.

Survival. Provisions in this Eimibit I regarding the use end disclosure of PHI, return or
destAJCtion of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement In section (3) I. the
defense and indemnirication provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms ertd conditions (P-37). shall survive the terminaiiori of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit I.

Oepartment of Heellh and Human Seryicai -

TheS

gna

fmrs

Name of .the Contractor v-'O

At^onzed Representative Signature of Auihgnzed Representative

^me of Authorized RepresentativRepresentativeNarrfe of Authorized Representative

itie of Authorized Represartialive

latfi /

Tills of Authorized Repres'entai'rve

//3/O09^
T 7

Dale

>2014 EiMtnt
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEOERftl FUNDING ACCQUKTABtLmf ANO TRANSPARENCY
ACT IFPATAI COMPLIANCE

The FetfeQl Funding AocotrntsblPty and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime ewsrdees of individuei
Federal grants equal to or greater'lhan $35,000 end ev^ed on or after October .1. 2010. to report on
data reiaied to executive compensabor) er>d assodated first-tier sub|grents of $25,000 or more. If the
initial award b below 125.000 but subsequent grant rnodifrcations result in a total award equal to' or over
, $25,000, the award is lu^ect to the FFATA reporting requiremena. as of the date of (he award.
In aooo^once wiin 2 CFR Pan trOiRaperting 'Subawa/d end CKaeudve Compensaijon Inrermatien). the
Department of Health and Human Services (OHHS) must report the following information for any
subawerd or contract eward subject lo the FFATA repontng requirements:
1. Name of entity -
2. Amount of award

3. Funding agency
4. NAJCS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grartis
5. Program'soor^
6. Award tlUe dascriplive of the purpose of lha funding action
7. Locationoftheenlity.
9. Pfinclpte place of performance
9. Unique Identifier of (he entity (DUNS 0)
to. Total compensation and names of the (op five executives il:

to.'i. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those
revenues are greater than $2SM ermualiy ar^d

10.2. Compensalbn Irdormation Is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by Ihe'end of the month, ptus 3D days, in wti'ich
lha eward or award amertdmem Is rnade.

The Contractor ldent(f«d in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply wilh the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountabilliy and Transparency Act, PuOtic tow 109-282 and Public Law 110*252,
and 2 CFR Pan 170 (Reporting Sutuward and ExecuCrve Compensation Irtformaiion), and further agreas
to have Ihe Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections t.ti and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute (he followtng Cenification:
The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed Information as outlined above lo the NH
Department of Healtfi and Human Services and to comply' with at) abplicabte provisions of tho Federal
Financial Accounlabil'ity and Transparency Act .

Contractor Name:

Dart ^ Nemc:
ntlo:

EiNSI J - CtnlUcmtOA RtgirdlnaiM Fve^fllFun^Ing Conirsao'InUib. ~
Acceimubttty Artd TtBmpwency Ad (FFATA) CcnplxrKS
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FORWA

A8 (he Coolfaclor.klenlifled In Section l .3 of the General Pfovbtona. I certify that the responus to the
betow Ibted questions are true end accurate.

1. Th» niiM^ numhflr for youf enUtv iS! Ifi ^ —
2". In your business or organiiallofl's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or oroatl^odon

receive (t) 60 perceni or more of your onnud p/ots rovonue in U.S. federol conirads. sgbconvocts..
loans grants, sub^ranis. end/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual
gross revenues from U.S. rede/at contracts, lubcomraets. loens. grants, wbgrenu, ond/or
cooperative agreements?

NO YES

11 the ansrver to « above Is NO. Stop hero

If the answer to 02 above is YES, please answer the fonowing:

Does the public have occees to infomtaiion aboul the compensation of the executives in your
business or organization through poriod'c reports Tiled under section I3ta) or t5(d) of the Sacuriiias
Change Act of 1934115 U.S.C.78m(a). 780(d)) or section 6t04 of ihe Internal Revenue Code of
1986?'

NO YES

If Ihe answer to 03 above is YES. slop here

•  If Ihe answer to 03 above is NO. please answer (he following;

4. The names end compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows;

Nemo:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Amount:,

Amount:.

Amount;

Amount:

Amount

CUVWVIIPO
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DHHS Information Security Requirements

A. Definitions

The following lerms may be reflocled and have the described meaning in this document:

1. 'Breach' means (he loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
unauthorized ecou'S't'on. unauthorized access, or any siimilar term referring to
situations where perscrts other than .authorized users and for an other than
authorized purpose have access or potential access to personally Identmabie
Informeiion. whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Hoefih
Information.' Breach' shall have the same meaning as the term 'Breech* in section
164.402 of Title 45. Code of Federal Regulations.

2  'Compuief Security Incident' shall have the seme meaning 'Computer Security
•  Incident* in section two (2) of NIST. Publication 800-61. Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide. National Institute oi Standards and Technology. U.S. Department
o( Commerce.' ' ,

3. 'Conridential Information* or 'Conrrdential Data" means all confidential information
disclosed by one party to the other such as ell medical, health, financial, public
assistance benefits and personal information including without limitation, Substance
Abuse Treatment Records. Case ■ Records. Protected Health Information end
Personally IdenUfiablo Information.

Confidential information also Includes any and all information owned or managed, by
the Stale of NH • created, received from or on behalf of the Department oi Health and
Human Services (OHHS) or accessed In the course of performing coniractod
services - of wtilch collection, disclosure, protection, and disposition is governed by
stale or federal law or regulation. This Information includas. bui is not limited to
Protected Health information fPH)}. Personal information (PI). Personel Financial
Information (PFI), Federal Tax Information (FTI), Social Security Numbers (SSN).
Payment Card Industry (PCI), arid or other sensitive and confidential Information.

4. 'End User* means any person or entity (e.g.. contractor.-contractor's employee,
business assodato. subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives
DHHS data or dorfvative doia in accordance with the terms of this Corilrect.

5. 'HIPAA" means the Health Insurance PortabPity and AcMuniabllify Act of 1996 and the
regulations promulgated thereunder.

6. 'Inddenf means'an act that potenilally violates an explicit or implied security policy,
■which includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unaulhorizad access to e
system or its date, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of
e system for the processing or storage ol data; end changes to system hardware,
firmware, or software cherecleristlcs wilhoul the owner's knowledge. Inslfuction. or
consent.'Incidents Indude the loss of dele through theft or device misplecomenl, loss
or misplacement ol hardcopy documents, and misrouting of physical or electronic

VS.Lntvp4«U I0V9/IS EMUiK ConVsOorlAUai}
OKKSlAfonniOon



DocuSign Envelope ID; 8DD358B3-0D9C-49EA-A3C1-2g9C124E46C3

D >cuSlgn Envelope ID: ECB30A3E>d7PA'4406-A2E6-A6El5lSDE2D5

DoeuSIgn Envelope ID; O1E3E5EC-5FC7-4E27.0iOS-3C7FBO2»CO68

OocuSlQA Envelope (D: OtZgEiOS-BEAt^f-eCSl-tFCFOttAaME

New Hampehire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibil K
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mall, ell of ̂ ch may have ihe poteniial to put the data el risk of unauthorized
eccees, use, disdosuro. modification o'destruction. ,

7. *Opon Wireless.Network' moans any network or segment of a network that is
not designated by the State of New Hampshire's Department of information
Technology or delegate as a protected network (designed.''tested, end
approved, by means of the Siaie, to transmfi) will be considered an open
network and not adequately secure for the trensrhission of unencrypted PI. PPl.
' PHI or confidential DHHS data.

6. 'Personal information* (or 'PI') means infonnaiion which can be used to distinguish
or trace an individuars identity, such as their name, social security number, persorial
informalion as defined in New Hampshire RSA 359-C:i9. biometric records.- etc..
atone, or when conibined with other personal or identifying information which Is linked
or linkable to a specific individual, such as date and place of birth, mother's maiden ■
name. etc.

9. 'Privacy Rule* Shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually tdentifiabie Health
Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 150 and 164. promulgated urider HfPAA by the United
States Department of Health and Human Services.

10. 'Protected Health Informalron' (or 'PHI') has the seme meaning as provided-In the
Oefinition of 'Protected Health Information* In the HIPAA Privacy l^'ule at 45 C.F.R. §
160.103. •

11. 'Security Rule' shall mean the Security Standards for the Prelection of Electronic
Protected Health Information el 45 C.F.R. Part 164. Subpart C. and amendments
thereto.

12. 'Unsecured Protected Health Information' moans Protected Health Information that is
not secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health Infonnstion'
unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized Individuals and is
developed or endorsed by e standards developing organization that is accredited by
the American National Standards Institute. ,

I. RESPONSIBfUTIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A. Business Use'and Disclosure of Confidential infonmatiorv.

1. The Conlractor^must not use. disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential Informalion
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further. Contractor.
Including but not,limited to all its directors, officers, employees end egents. must not
use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation
of the Privacy and Security Rule.

2. The' Contractor must not disclose any Conndenliai Informelion In response to a

VJ.tMlvpdBU towuta ErfiDiiK ComrtctOflflttldi
OHHS MomeUOA

S«cvrtiyR»ciulwnv»«»
PogtaofS ' Dala //



DocuSign Envelope ID: 8DD358B3-0D9C-49EA-A3C1.299C124E46C3

OoLsign Envelope 10: ECB30A3E-87FA-4406-A2EB-A6E15150E20S
[JocuSign Envelope lO; OlE3E5FC-5FC7-4£27-9lO«-3C7FB02»COM

OocuSl9> Enwelopa tO: 01 nS40&-6EA4-484F-eC3>«FCFO2«ABA4E
•  )

New Hampshire Department of Heelth and Huinan Servlees

£*hibil K

OHHS Information Security Requirements

request for disefosure on the basis that it is required by law. In response to a
subpoer^a. etc.. without first notifying DHHS so that OHHS has an opportur^ty to
conserM or ob)^ to tho disclosure.

3. II OHHS notihos the Coniractof that OHMS has agreed to bo bound by additional
restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or socurity safeguards of PHI
pursuant to iho Privacyjand Security Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such
edditio'nol restrtetlons end must not disdose PHI in vlolalion of such additional
restricttohs and must abide by'any additional security safeguerds. ■ . '

4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derrvaiive there from disclosed^ to an End
User must only be used pursuant to the terms of Ibis Contract.

5. The Conlractor agrees OHHS Data obtained undar this Comracl may not be used for
any other purposes that ere not indicaled ln this Contract

6. The Contractor agrees to gram access to the data to the authorized repre'senlativos
of DHHS for the purpose of inspecting to confirm »mpliance with the terms of this
Conlrect.

METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1. Application Encryption. If End User Is transmitting OHHS data containing
Confidenliai Data between applications, the Contractor attests the applications have
been evaluated by an expert knowtedgeable in cyber security and that said
application's encryption capabilities ensure secure transmission via the internet.

2. Computer Disks end Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use computer disks
or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting QHHS
data.

3. Encrypted Email. End User moy only employ email to transmit Confidential Data if
email is encfVDted and being sent to and being received by email addresses of
persons authorized to racelve such information.

4. Encryplod Web Site. If End User Is employing the Web to transmit Conndehilal
Dale, the secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must be
secure. SSL encrypts dale transmitted via a Web site.

5. File. Hosting Services, also known es File Sharing Slles. End User may not use file
hosllr^g services, such as Qropbox or Google Cloud Storage. 10 transmit

' Confidential Data.

6. GrourKl Mail Service. End User may only transmit Confidenliai Data vja cerfrfied ground
mall within the conllnental U.S. and when sent to a named Individual.

7. Laptops end PDA. If End User Is employing portable devices to transmit
Confidential Data said devices rpusi be encrypts and password-protected.

8. Open Wireless Networks. End User may not irarismii Conndential Data via an open"
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'  wireless netwc^. End User musi employ a virtual private networit (VPN) when
remotely irsnsmilting via an open wireless network.

9.. Remote User Communication. If End User Is employing remote communication to
access or transmit Confideniiel Osla, e virtual private netwo'rt< (VPN) must be
installed on the Er>d User's mobile devico(s) or laplop.from which inrormation win be
transmitted or accessed.

10. SSH File Trensfer Protocol (SFTP), also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If
End User is employing en SFTP to transmit Confidential Data, End User will
structure the Folder and access privileges to prevent Inappropnate disdosure of
information. SFTP folders end sub-foldem used -for transmitting Conftdenlial Date wit!
be coded for 24-hour aulo-deielion cyde (i.e. Confidential Data will bo deleted every 24
hours).

It. Wireless Devices, if End User is transmltting.Conndeniial Oeia via wireless devices, ell
deiamust be encrypted to prevent Inappropriate disdosure of information.

RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF lOENTIFIABlE RECORDS

The Contractor will only retain (he date end any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract. After such time, the Contrector wi|] have 30 days to destroy the data and any
dertvetiva in whatever form it mey-exist. unless, otherwise required, by law or permitted
under this Contract. To (his er>d, the parties must;

A. Retention ^

1. The Contractor agrees it will not store, transfer or process data poflect^ in
connection with (he services rendered under this Contract outside of the United
States. This physical location requirement'shaD also eppty in the implementation of
cloud computing, doud service or cloud storage capabilities, and indudes backup
data end Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Contrector agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are In
place to delect potential, security events that can impact State of NH systems
er>d/or Department confidentisl information for'contractor provided systems.

3. The Contractor agrees (o provide security'awareness end education for Us End
Users In support of protecting Department oonfidential Information.

4. The Contractor agrees to retain all electronic and hard copies of Confidential Dale
in a secure tocat'ion and idemifted In section IV. A.2

5. The Contractor agrees Confidential Date stored in e Cloud must be in a
FedRAMP/HlTECH compliant solution end comply with all applicable statutes and
regulations regarding (he privacy and eecurity. All servers and devices must have
curranlly-suppoiled and hardened operating systems, 'the latest anti-viral, entl-
hacker. enti'Sparn. enii-spyware. arKl enil-malware uliiiUes. The environment, as a
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whole, must have aggressive Inuuslon-detecton end rtrewail proteetion.

6. The Contractor agrees to and ensures its oompieie cooperation with the State's
Chief Information OfTicer in the detection of any security vulnerability of the hosting
infrastAJCture.

B. Disposition

1. If the Contractor wfli maintain any Conndantlal information on its systems (or Its
sub^ntractor systems).- the Contractor will maintain a documented process for
securely disposing of such daia upon request or contract termination; and will
obtain written certification for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
Contractor or arty subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, end or disaster
recovery operations. When no lortger in use, electronic media containing State ol
New Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program
In accordance wlih industry-eccepled standards for secure delation and media
sanitlzation, or otherwise physically destroying the media (for example,
degaussing) es described in NIST Special Publication 600>86. Rav 1. Guidelines

. for Madia Sanitlzation. National Institute of Standards end Tectinology, U. S.
Department of Commerce. The Contractor will documeni and certify In vmting at
lime of the data destruction, and will provide wrihen certificalion to the Oepaflmen! ■
upon request. The whtten certificalion will indude ■ ell details necessary to
demonstrate data has been property destroyed and validated. Whoro applicable,
regulatory and professional standards for retention requirements will be jointly
evaluated by the State end Contraclor prior to destruction.

2. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
■ Conirad. Contraclor agrees to destroy ail hard copies of Confidential Data using a
secure method such as shredding.

3. Unless otherwise .specified, within thirty (30) days of the terrhinalion of this
Contract. Contraclor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confidential Data
by means of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the OHHS Oala received under this Contract, end any
defWaiive data or files, as follows:

1. The Contractor will maintain proper security controls to protect Department
confidential informelion collected, processed, managed, and/or stored in the delivery
of contracted services.

Z The Contractor u^ll mainialn policies and procedures to protect Department
confidential information througho^ the information Irfecycte; where epplicable. (from'
croation, Irensformation. use. storage end secure destruction) regardless of the
media used lo store the data (i.e.. tape, disk, paper, etc.).
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3. The Contractor ivill maintain appr^nate authentication and access controh to
conlractor &ystems thai coilacl. transmit, or store Department confidentia) inrornialJon
vvhero applicable.

4. The Contractor wilJ ensure proper security mpnitortng capaUItUes are In place to
detect potential security events thai can impact State of NH systems and/or
Dapadment confidential information for contractor provided systems.

5. The Contractor wtl) provide regular security awareness end education for Its End
Users in support of protecting Oepartmenl confidential information.

6. If the Contractor wiD be subcontracting any core functions of the engagement
supporting the services (or Stele.cf New Hanftpshire. the Contractor will maintain a
program of en Internal. process or processes that defines spedfic security
expectations, and monitoring compliance to security requirements that el a minimum
match those for the Contractor, hctudir^g breach notificdllon requirements.

7. The Contractor will worV with the Department to sign and comply with an eppticabie
State of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization policies
end procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of
obtaining and maintaining access to any Department system(s). Agreements wlll be
completed and sighed by the Contractor and any applicable sut>-contr8ctors prior to
system eocess bemg auihorized.

8. If the Department determines the Contractor Is a Business Associate pursuant to 4$
CFR 160.103. the Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) wrilh the Department and is responsible for maintaining compliance with the
ogroomenl.

9. The Contractor wHt worX with the Department at its request to complete e System
Managf^ment Survey. The purpose of the survey is to enable the Oepartmerit and
Contractor to monitor, for any changes In risks, threats, and vutnerablilles that may
occur over the life ol the Contractor engagement. The survey will be completed
annually, or an alternate time frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by
the Contractor, or the Depafimeni may request the survey be completed wften the
scope of the engagement betweert the Department and the Contractor changes.

10. The Contractor wilt not store, knowingly or unknowingly, ariy Stole of Now Hempshire
or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States unless
prior express written consent is obtained from the Information Secunty Office
leadership member within the Department.

11. Data Security Breach l.iabiiity. tn the event of eny security-breach Contractor shall
make efforts to Investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to
prevent future breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting from the breach.

, The State shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from
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the breach. Inciuding but not limileiJ to: crodii moniioring services, mailing costs and
costs assodaied with website and telephone call cef\lef services necessary duo to
the breach.

12 Contractor must, cOTply with all applicable statutes and regulations regarding the
' privacy arwJ security ot Confidential information, and must in .at! other respects

maintain the privacy and security of PI and PH) at a level and scope that Is not less
than the level and scope ot reouiremenis applicable to federal egencies, including
but not Itmlicd to. provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § 552o). OHHS
Privacy Act Regulattons (4S O.f.R. §5b). HIPAA Privacy end Security Rules (45
C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164) that govern protecilons for,individually Identifiable health
Information and as applicable under Stale law.

■13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate edmlnistraOve, technical, and
physical safeguards to protect the conftdentiality of the Confidential Date and to
prevent unauthorized use or access lo 11.. The saleguards must provide a level and
scope ol security that Is not less Ihan the level and scope of security requuemenls
established by the State ol New Hampshire. Department of Informelion Technology.
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement ai https;//www.nh.gov/doil/vendor/index.him-
(or the Oepertmonl of information Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and
procurement Information relating lo vendors.

14 Contractor agrees lo meiniain a documented breach notification artd inddenl
' response process. The ConUactor will notify the Slate's Privacy Officer and the

State's -Secority Officer of any security breach Immediately, at the email addresses
provided In Section VI. This indudes a confidential InformaVon breach, computer
security incident, or suspected breach which effects or includes ar^y Stele of New
Hampshire systems that connect to Ihe Slate of New Hampshire notworh.

15. Conirador must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this
Contract to only those authorized End Users who need such OHHS Data to
perform their official duties In connection with purposes Idor^tlfied in this Contract.

16. The Contractor must ensure that at) End Users:
B. comply with such safeguards as referenced in Section IV A.

implemented lo protect Confidential Information that Is furnished by OHHS
under this Conlraci from loss, theft or inadvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard this tnfonnatlO;n at all times.
c. ensure thai laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHI. PI. or

PFI are encrypted and password'protectad.
d  send emails conlaining ConfidBnlial Information only if gpcryptgd and being

sent to and being received by email addresses of persons authorized lo
receive such information,
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e. Ilmil disdosure of the Confideniiat Information to the erteni permitted by law.

f. Confidenlial Information received under Ihls Cont/ect end indMduaDy
' idenuridble data derived from OHHS Data. must be stored in an area that is

physicelly and tochnologicaPy secure from access by urvauthorizod persons
during duty hours as wel) es rx)n-duty hours (e.g., door locks, card keys.
biomeUtc identiTiers, etc.).

Q; only aulhorlzied End Users may transmit (he Confidential Gate. Including any
dehvalive filas containtr^ personally identinabie informeUon.-and in ell cases,
such data must be encrypted at all times when In transit, at rest, or when
stored on portable media as required in section IV above.

h. in all other instances Conndential Data must be maintained, used and.
disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as determined by a risk^based
essossmeni of the circumstances involved.

i. understand that their user credentials (user name and password) must not be
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential informatich secure.
This applies to credentials used (o access the site directly or indirecOy through
e third party epplicetion.

Contractor is responsible for oversight and comptisnce of their End Users. OHHS
reserves the right (o conduct onsite Inspections to monitor compliance with this
Contract. Including the privacy and security requirements provided in herein. HIPAA,
er>d other appticabie laws and Federal regulations until such.time the Confidential Data
Is disposed of in accordance with this Contract.

V. LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor must notify the Stale's Privacy Officer and Security Officer of any
Security incidents and Breaches Immedlaleiy, at the.email addresses provided in
Section VI.

The Contractor must further handle and report ir*:idcnls and Breaches Involving PHI In
eccordence with the agency's documented Inddenl Handling and Breach Notification
procedures and In accordance wtih 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 • 308. In addition (o. end
r\otw1thslanding. Contractor's compliance with ell applicable obligations and procedures.

•: Conlrsctor's procedures must also address how ihe Contraclor wilt:

1. Identify Incidents; ^ /

2. OetermiAe If personally Identifiable Iriformaiion is involved in Incidents;

3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required in (his Exhibit or P-37:

4. Identify end convene a core response group to determine the risk level of Incidents
and determine risk'based responses to Incidents; and
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S. Determine whether Breach rtotification .Is reouifed. and, A so.' tdeniify eppropdete
Breach noUTication methods..timinp.'source, and'contents from arrwng different
options, ar>d beer costs assocleted with the Breach r\otlce as woti as ony mhtgation
measures.

Incidents and/or Breaches the! implicate PI must be addressed and reported, as
appHcsble. In eccordence with NH RSA 3S9>C:20.-

VI PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. OHMS Privacy Offtcor:

DHHSPriv8cyOfricer@dhhs.nh.90v

B. DHHS Security Officer

DHHSInform8ljonSecur>tyOffice@dhhs.nh.^v
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